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Strategic Report

Nature, Objective and Strategies

The Board of Governors present their report together with the financial statements and author’s
report for Kendal College for the year ended 31 July 2023.

Legal Status

The Corporation was established under the Further and Higher Education Act 1992 for the
purpose of conducting Kendal College, The College is an exempt charity for the purposes of Part
3 of the Charities Act 2011.

The Corporation was incorporated as Kendal College.
Mission, Vision, Strategy & Objectives

Kendal College is a further education college, with three sites in the town of Kendal in South
Lakeland, Cumbria, namely the Milnthorpe Road campus, the Aris and Media campus and the
Westmorland Campus, which commenced housing students from September 2022

One of four general further education colleges in Cumbria, with a wide catchment area, the
College offers a broad curriculum from foundation level to higher education, to meet the needs of
employers and the local community. Courses are designed lo ensure students gain a full range of
skills and qualifications, to enable the best possible chance of employment or progression to
higher levels, and are delivered flexibly to ensure financial viability and reflect local community
and employment needs and Cumbria Local Enterprise Partnership (LEP) priorities.

The College’s mission statemeant is as follows:
Unlocking potential = Transforming lives — Creating bright futures

The vision of Kendal College is to provide outstanding education and training opportunities that
are responsive to the needs of our students and our community. All sur actions will help develop
our students to deliver positive economic and sustainable environmental change both now and in

the future.
The mission and vision are supported by our core College values:

+« Excellence and ambition
« Respect and honesty

» Diversity and inclusion

= Loyalty and commitment

» A positive anvironmant

Al the start of the academic year 2022/23 Kendal College’s new sirategic plan ‘The Kendal
Ambition’ was approved and is now in operation until 2025,
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Strategic Report (Continued)

Following consultation with a range of stakeholders, the sirategic plan 2022-2025 is supported
by a series of underpinning policies and strategies including estates, quality, finance, and
curriculum. The Corporation monitors the performance of the College against our strategic
priorities at set points throughout the year, with our pricrities as identified as:

= Our quality: consistantly deliver a high-quality leaming experience and environment,
where we innovate, develop and improve our curriculum offer,

* Qur reputation: further develop and grow our partnerships and engagement, helping to
secure a reputation as the best education and training for our community.

+ Qur environment: develop the business to ensure we are bound by the highest level of
ethical values and behaviours which develops the College's environment practices and
awaranass,

» Our future sustainability: develop the business to ensure we are resilient, future proof
and financially sustainable.

= Qur people: continually develop and invest in our people and teams. Supporting learmers
and staff o be active partnars in our work,

The strategic plan is then further spiit into strategic targets achievable within the duration of the
plan, underpinned by an operational plan with annual milestones and Key performance indicators
to be achieved each academic year.

The success of the College against these is assessed through the College’s quality processes,
which reports through to SLT and the Board of Governors.

The cetailed Kendal College Strategic Plan for 2022-2025 is available from the College website.
Resources

The College enrolled approximately 3,724 students in 2022/23. The College's student population
includes 1.341 16-to-18-year-old students, 945 apprentices, 75 higher education students and
1,363 adult learners.

The College is well resourced to deliver a high-quality curriculum. All real working environments
and workshops are equipped to a high standard and not only meet the needs of the curriculum
but also of employers.

Parsonnel

The College employs 349 people, of whom 214 are teaching and teaching support siaff.
Employees include lecturers, apprenticeship facilitators, learning assistants and tachnicians as
well as estates, finance, HR, catering and administrative personnel.
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Strategic Report (Continued)

Ei o

The College has £13.7million (2022: £11.5 million) of net assels including a Enil pension asset
(2022: £2.2 million liability) and long-term debt of £1.9 million (2022: £2.1 million).

Tangible resources include the Milnthorpe Road campus and Castle Dairy as well as the leased
Allen building, Museum and Westmaorand Campus. The College continually invests in its site:

= the construction of a new building for the delivery of engineering and conslruction
courses was completed in September 2023 and has been in use, by students and staff,
since this date, and

s the purchase of the first and second flicors of the Westmarland Shopping Centre (the
Westmarland Campus), which will offer additional teaching space, is due 1o complete by
the end of December 2023, A programme of capital improvement works will be required
prior to the College bringing the site into full use, which is aimed for by September 2024,

During the year to 31 July 2023, the College also received £1.165 million of capital grants for the
purpose of addressing areas of poor condition and improving energy afficiancy, across its siles.

Reaputation

Kendal College was inspected by OFSTED in October 2023, where it was graded as requires
improvement. Whilst the college was disappointed with the outcome, it has fully embraced the
inspection findings and believes the cutcome was a fair reflection of where the college was at
that moment in time. Whilst the OFSTED feedback contained a lot of strong and supportive
evidence, the college have taken the positive from the outcome in that it will now use the OFSTED
judgement to look at ways o develop and sees the inspection cutcome as its first step in a journey
of improvement,

Maintaining its guality is essential for the College's success at attracting students and external
relationships and, despite the OFSTED outcome, the college continues to have posilive
stakeholder relationships stemming from the excellent reputation it continues to generate both
locally and nationally. Kendal College has a solid foundation on which to build as they continue
{0 improve the guality of their provision prior to a future re-inspection, and that's the message that
the college are giving lo its staff, students, and stakeholders.

The College engages significantly with its key stakeholders to ensure its curriculum and faciliies
are fit for purpose, with OFSTED reporting that college leaders work with employers and other
stakeholders effectively to identify, understand, and contribute to meeting local and regional skills
needs. Curriculum development links closely with current Chamber of Commerce priorities and
supports local employment needs through the college's rasponse to the local skills improvement
plan. All of this enhances the reputation of the College in its communily, evidenced by its standing
in the local area and its relationships with Westmorland and Furness Council, FE group of
Colleges, South Lakes Federation of Secondary Schools, Kendal Fulures and Cumbria Careers
Hub.

The College has received numerous other accolades including Beacon Status for excellence and
innovation, Matrix Award for advice and guidance and at the last Higher Education Review was
judged to meet all the UK expeclations.
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Stakeholders

The College has many stakeholders including:

= its current, fulure and past students;
» Education sector funding bodies;

« i staff,

« trade unions (Unison and UCU);

# the employers it works with;

« local educational institutions, including secondary schools, University of Cumbria and
Lancaster University as well as the wider FE community;

« local authorities and councils including Cumbria County Council and it's successors - the
unitary authorities of Westmorand and Furness Council and Cumberand Council;
Lancashire County Council and North Yorkshire Council:

+ Government Offices, Regional Development Agencies and Local Enterprise
Partnerships; and

= professional bodies.

The College recognises the importance of these relationships and engages in regular
communication with them through opportunities to be invited into the College for network
meelings, open days, employer events and presentations as well as through raising the profile of
the College in the media using case studies and stories about stakeholder links. It particularly
values the views of its learners through the Sludent Council and through Student Governors on
the Board.

Further information on the College’s engagement with stakeholders is available in the Kendal
College Accountability Statement on the college website.

Public Benefit

Kendal College is an exempt chanty under Part 3 of the Charities Act 2011 and is regulated by
the Secretary of State for Education. The members of the Board of Governors, who are trustees
of the charity, are disclosed on page 3. In setting and reviewing the College’s strategic objectives,
the Board of Governors has had due regard for the Charity Commission's guidance on public
benefit and particularty upon its supplementary guidance on the advancement of education.

The guidance sets out the requirement that all organisations wishing to be recognised as charities
must demonstrate, explicitly, that their aims are for the public benefit.

In delivering its mission. the College provides identifiable public benefits through the
atdvancement of education to approximately 3,724 students, including 78 students with high
needs. The College provides a high-quality teaching experience and environment, with courses
delivered without charge to young peaple, to those who are unemployed and adults taking English
and maths courses.
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Strategic Report (Continued)

The College continues to grow parinerships and engagement with local employers and the wider
community to secure the best possible education and training for the community; innovation and
continuous improvement to the curriculum offer ensures that the courses delivered meet the
needs of local employers. The College is committed to providing information, advice and guidance
to the students it enrols and lo finding suitable courses for as many students as possible
regardiess of their educational background. The Cellege is also committed to the devetopment
and investment in all staff, to ensure that they are active partners with the College.

Development and Performance
Financial Objectives

The College’s financial objectives are 1o:

« Improve the financial sustainability of the College through robust and prudent practices
to secure future investment and delivery of the College Mission Statement.

« Source externally funded contracts including through collaborative bidding and delivery.

« Through robust recording and monitoring processes, maximise funding to enable
ongoing sustainability.

= Seek further growth opportunities with less reliance on government funding by
maximising the income generation opportunities of curriculum areas and Collage
campuses.

» Continuing to seek cost efficiencies through challenging current processes and ratics,
improving procurement procedures and investing in energy efficient upgrades and IT to
improve operational efficiencies.

« Generate cash and build reserves.
= Ensure financial efficiency ratios are in line with seclor norms.

= Invest in resources and structures to support apprenticeship expansion in response to
national reforms, including supply chain opportunities.

« [Expand recruitment in all curriculum areas including new and innovative programmes.
» Maximise the lake-up of Advanced Learner Loans.
» Re-purpose Kendal Museum as a commaercial operation.
» Comply with relevant legislation including Managing Public Money requirements,
The College will achieve its financial objectives by:
+ Implementing robust system of financial oversight and governance, which incorporates
specialist input, as appropriate, including working with internal and external auditors.

» Continuing to develop a strong system of internal financial controls which is in line with
best practice.

= Timely reporting of accurate and relevant financial information to Governaors, which is
subject to thorough review and challenge.

» Closer scrutiny of financial management and college projects through the governor
appointed task and finish group — Finance and Resources Working Group (FRWG).

k|
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Strategic Report (Continued)

= Prudent budgeting and careful monitoring of expenditure and cashflow.

« Challenging spending and implementing procurement processes which enable the
College to achieve best value, including the use of public sector procurement
frameworks.

= Monitoring covenants via the risk management process,

« Ensuring that funding contract terms are met and the College tenders for new funding
streams.

» Menitoring tumover and growth.

To support the Board of Gowvernors in meeting their financial obligations, a Finance and
Resources Working Group, comprising of gowernors, external specialists and College
management, has been establizhed to provide additional moenitoring of financial resilience for the
Corporation.

Financial Review

Income and Expendifure

The College received 81% of its revenue income for 2022/23 as grants from funding bodies, with
80% coming from the Education and Skills Funding Agency.

Kendal College Income 2022-23

® ESFA grants
m Office for studants
o Release of capital grants

® Advanced learner loans

® Tuition fees and educational
contracts
m Catering and other incomea

ganerating activities

1
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Increases in income from 16-to-1B-year-olds and apprentices have been offsel, in part, by
reductions in income from Advanced Learner Loans and Higher Education / Higher Mational
Diplomas. Additional funding has also been generated through grants related to the adoption of
the new T Levels and delivery of Multiply and Bootcamp skills sessions, as well as succassiul
application to the Accelerator 2 initiative, though these income streams are malched with
increased costs.

The increase in income has been surpassed by increases in costs; pay-awards and increases in
headcount have increased stalf costs and high levels of inflation have had a direct impact on
costs, particularly in relation to IT, premises and catering. Investment has also been made in the
Westmorland Campus, to bring the building in line with educational standards.

The College generated an operating deficit of £296k. This surplus includes the following non-
cash items:
« F£176k service charge relating to the Local Government Pension Scheme (see note 23);

s FO0k of net interest and administrative costs, recognised in relation to defined benefit
pension schemes, in accordance with FRS102 (see note 23);

« £488k of Capital Grant releases;
« £1,029k depreciation and amortisation {see note 11);
« £3k loss on disposal of assets;
Excluding these, non-cash items, the College's operating parformance was a surplus of £1,401k

Balance Sheet Assels and Liabiities

At 31 July 2023, the College held net current liabilities of £794k (2022: £627k) and net assets of
£13.7 million (2022: £11.5 million), which includes a defined pension asset of Enil (2022: £2.2
million liability).

During the year the College invested £1.7 million in tangible and intangible fixed assets, including
£803k in relation to the construction of a new Engineering and Construction block at the
Milnthorpe Road campus. This project was pari-funded by Government grants, which are being
held on the Balance Sheet and released to the Statement of Income and Expenditure in ling with
depraciation on the building.

The College was also granted an additional £1.074 million of funding from the Depariment of
Education towards the construction of a new Animal Care building. Unfortunately, the costs
associated with this build ware prohibitive and the College has withdrawn from this project.

The College received a further £1.165 million in capital grants which have not yet been spent and
are being held as a liability on the balance sheet, within receipts in advance. These funds will be
used for a programme of site improvements addressing areas of poor condition.

11
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Strategic Report (Continued)

At 31 July 2023, the College held cash and short-term investment balances of £2.8 million,
including £186k of ring-fenced Learning Support Funds, £2.4 million of unspent capital grants
(subject to restrictions) and £116k of grants relating to employers. The net cashfiow in the year
to 31 July 2023 was £526k. The College closely monitors cashfiows and aims to continue to
increase its unallocated cash balances in order to develop a contingency to meet short-term
emergencies and future capital requirements.

At 31 July 2023, the College had £1.9 million of loans outstanding with third party banks, Natwest
and Lloyds.

At 31 July 2023, the College had accumulated reserves of £13.7 million, comprising:

= E748k Revaluation Reserve: this is a non-cash reserve which reflects the increase in the
value of the book value of the College land and buildings when valued in 1996. The
College has chosen not to adopt a policy of revaluing these properties in the future:

= £12,937k Unrestricted Reserves: representing the excess of income generated by the
College less expenditure; and

» E£34k Restricted Reserves: representing the excess of income received in relation to the
Multiply initiative compared to expenditure incurred at 31 July 2023;

» Enil pension asset: the pension valuation for the College has been capped as, whilst the
College’s share of the scheme assets exceeded its share of liabilities, this will not result
m a future economic benefit. The College will continue lo make pension contributions, as
advised by the scheme actuary.

The Board of Governors review the current and projected level of reserves on a regular basis,
ensuring that it is adequate for the continued operation of the College.

Future Prospects

The College continues to focus on growing student numbers and quality of teaching and leaming,
with particular focus given to growth in Work Based Learning, Higher Education and A Levels.

Growth has been hindered by constraints on teaching space, this has been addressed through
the shor-term hire of temporary accommaodation and the purchase of the Westmorland Campus
leasehold.

Future Developments

The College are looking to increasingly meet the skills needs of Cumbria and have been working
closely with the Chamber of Commerce and the Cumbrian Local Enterprise Partnership (CLEP)
to deliver programmes that help support the employers and skills needs of the county, Kendal
College’s Accountability Statement can be found on our website which give further detail as to
how the college are supporting skills through our current and future work. We are active in the
CLEP led mulliply prejects and bootcamp provision, alongside our continued work on and the
lecal skills improvement plan supported by the Chamber of Commerce. We also continue
expanding our T Level offering.

12
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Strategic Report (Continued)

Our College strategy ‘the Kendal ambition’ is looking at expansion of our adult, apprenticeship
and higher education provision in line with our sirategic aims.

Financial Plan

The College’s financial objectives are set out within the College strategy, which was approved by
the Board of Governors in July 2021 and is subject o lermly reviews.

The Board of Governors have also approved separate treasury management and reserves
policies, as outlined below.

Treasury Policies and Objectives

Treasury management is the management of the College's cash flows, its banking, money markel
and capital markel transactions, the effective conirol of the risks associaled with those aclivities;
and the pursuil of optimum parformance consistent with thosa risks,

The College has a separate treasury management policy in place, which is reviewed on an annual
basis. Compliance with this policy is overseen by the Board of Governars.

Following the reclassification of FE colleges to the government sector from 29 November 2022,
any new amendments to existing private sector borrowing facilities or new borrowings are subject
to prior approval by the ESFA. Kendal College received approval to enter into a new £4.6 million
loan-finance arrangement with Natwest on 28 February 2023; these funds will be drawn down in
December 2023 and used lo repay an existing loan with Lloyds bank and purchase the
Westmorand Campus.

Reserves Policy

The College recognises the imporance of reserves in the financial stability of any erganisation
and ensures thal there are adequate reserves to support the College’s core activities; it has a
reserves policy approved by the Audit and Risk Committea in May 2023.

As at the balance sheet date, the College has £34k (2022: £0k) of restricted reserves, Enil million
pension asset (2022: £2 207 million liability) and £12.937 million of unrestricted income and
axpenditure reserves (2022: £12.124 million).

A programme of capital improvement works has been developed. In relation to unspent Energy
Efficiency, FE Reclassification, FE Transformation and T Level Equipment capital grants, it is
expacted that these grants will be spent in full over the 2023-24 and 2024-25 academic years.

It is the College's intention to increase reserves over the life of the strategic plan through the
generation of annual operating surpluses.

13
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Principal Risks and Uncertainties

Risk management is embedded into all the College does and it has well developed strategies for
managing risks. Risk management systems, including internal control processes, are designed
lo protect the assets of the College as well as its reputation and are regularly reviewed to enable
the College to operate in line with best practice.

The Board of Governors has overall responsibility for risk management and its approach to
managing risks and intermnal controls is explained in the Statement on Corporate Governance.

Based on the strategic plan, senior management and the Board of Governors of the College
undertake a comprehensive review of the risks to which the College is exposed. They identify
systems and procedures, including specific preventable actions which should mitigate any
potential impact on the College. Internal controls are then implemented, and the subsequent
years appraisal will review their effectiveness and progress againsl risk mitigation actions. In
addition lo the annual review, consideration is also given to any risks which may arise as a resull
of a new area of work being undertaken by the College.

A strategic risk register is maintained which is reviewed at least on a termly basis by the Audit
and Risk Committee and more frequently where necessary. The risk register identifies the key
risks, the likelihood of those risks occurring, their potential impact on the College and the actions
being taken to reduce and mitigate the risks. Risks are prioritised using a consistent scoring and
Red, Amber, Yellow, Blue and Green raling system.

Outlined below is a description of the principal risk factors that may affect the College and the
actions taken to minimise the impact from these. Not all the factors are within the College's
control. Other factors besides those listed below may also adversely affect the College.

= Declining Financial Health Score: the College must be financially stable and resilient
in order to remain independent. The College’s financial health grade is currently
classified as “good”. However, the continuing challenge to the College’s financial
position remains the constraint on further education funding arising from the ongoing
cuts in public sector spending whilst maintaining the student experience. This risk is
mitigated in a number of ways including robust financial controls, rigorous budget setting
proceduras and sensilivity analysis, regular financial reporting and in-year budget
monitoring as well as exploring on-going procurement efficiencies and opportunities for
income generation.

« Breach of Covenants: the College must remain compliant with its loan covenants, a
breach could lead to repayment of the loan. Financial forecasts and monthly
management accounts, reviewead by Senior Leaders and Governors, report on
parformance against covenants.

* Failure to Achieve Student Recruitment Targets: the majority of the College’s income
5 derived from recurrent grants calculated on the basis of student numbers: failure lo
meet student recruitment targets would seriously impact financial stability and cash
balances of the College, which could also have reputational implications. KPIs relating to
recruitment targels are set annually, based on a combination of past enrclments,
demographics and inteligence from Heads of Facullies; performance against these is
assessed at each meeling of the Board of Govemnors,

14
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L

Failure to Meet Outcome Targets: the College’s reputation rests on its ability to
provide high quality teaching and learning which results in good levels of leamer
progress, failure to meet outcome targets would impact on the College's self-
assessment report and external menitoring, including Ofsted outcomes, as well as
student numbers and staff morale. A robust system of qualily management, which
include curriculum performance reviews, is implemented and overseen by the Board of
Governors.

Failure to Prepare for T Level Qualifications: specialist grants have been received to
support implementation of the new T Levels, this pilot funding may be withdrawn,
student applications may fall and the College's reputation may be damaged if it fails to
deliver high quality T Level courses.

Challenges Retaining and Recruiting Personnel: the success of the College relies
upon its high quality, highly skilled personnel. Difficulties recruiting or retaining staff may
lead to poor student experiences, a decline in staff morale and possible industrial action
as well as reputational damage. To altract and retain staff, the College aims to offer a
competitive rewards package, which includes well-being offerings and opportunities for
development and progression, and seeks employee feedback and engagement through
safisfaction surveys. Succession plans are in place for key members of personnel.

Insufficient Resources Available to Deliver a High-Quality Curriculum: a lack of
suitable teaching and delivery spaces or necessary resources could have a detrimental
impact on students’ learning experience and result in reduced student numbers. A
Capital and Estates Strategy, which outlines actions to secure additional leaming
spaces as well as a programme of capital improvement works to address assels in poor
condition, has been developed and approved by the Board of Governors. This stralegy
aligns with College priorities and financial forecasts provide for related expenditure. The
College maximises funds available for purchasing resources by applying for all relevant
additional grant funds and capital projects are managed by the experienced
management team, with the support of specialist external advisors, overseen by the
Finance and Resource Working Group.

Failure to Manage the College Network and Data Securely: the efficient running of
College operations relies upon the effectivenass of IT network, unauthorised access 1o
the network, e.g. through a cyber-attack, could result in severe disruption to operations
and loss of dala and cyber attackers may demand ransom payments to restore access
to systems. The College may also be fined for loss or breach of data. Kendal Coliege is
committed to ensuring the security of its data, a robust system of IT controls are
implemented and overseen by the in-house IT team, Senior Leaders and Board of
Governors; the effectiveness of such cyber policies and procedures are reviewad
annually by specialist advisors and the College is working lowards Cyber Essentials
Accreditation.

15
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* Uncertain Economic Environment: through the purchase of goods and services from
third parties and payment of interest on bank loans, the College is affected by changes
in both inflation and interest rates. During the year o 31 July 2023, the consumer price
index was significantly higher than in recent years, fluctuating between 9.6% (October
2022') and 6.4% (July 2023), and the Bank of England Base Rate increased from 1,25%
to 5%*. Financial forecasts make allowances for inflationary increases, based on bast
eslimates at the time they are set, and financial modelling and sensitivity analysis
calculates the impact of movements in interest rates.

+ Government Funding: the College has considerable reliance on continued government
funding through the further education sector funding bodies. In the year to 31 July 2023,
81% of the College's revenue was ultimately publicly funded and this level of
requirement is expected to continue. There can be no assurances that government
palicy or practice will remain the same or that public funding will continue at the same
levels or on the same terms. The College is aware of Issues which may impact on fulure
funding, such as apprenticeship funding reforms and the introduction of T Levels. The
College mitigates these risks in a number of ways, including ensuring delivery of high-
quality education and training, maintaining and managing key relationships with various
funding boedies and working with all stakeholders.

« Government Policy: similarly, the College is subject to risks from changes in
government policies. The reclassification of the English colleges sector inlo central
government from 29 November 2022 brought colleges under the framework for financial
management set out in Managing Public Money (MPM), published by HM Treasury, and
introduced new requirements relating to financial management and oversight. Immediate
changes to borrowing approvals introduced significant delays to the acquiring of a new
bank loan to purchase of the Westmorland Campus and increased associated costs.
The College’s policies, procedures and approval processes have been updated to
ensure compliance with the new requirements following reclassification, including the
establishment of systems and processes to identify and handle transactions for which
DFE approval is now required.

+ Maintain Adequate Funding of Pension Liabilities: the financial statements report the
share of the Local Government Pension Scheme surplus or deficit on the Collage’s
balance sheet in line with the requirements of FRS102. The risk is mitigated by an agreed
deficit recovery plan with Cumbria County Council.

! hittps:fwww. ons.gov,uk ‘economyinflationandpriceindices/ imeseries/ 1550/ mm2 3
! hittpa:www bankofengland. co.uk'monetary-policy/the-interest- rate-bank-rate
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Key Performance Indicators

The College's key performance indicators (KPIs), targets and results are set out below.

Key Performance Indicator 2022/23 2021/22
Actual Target Actual
Student Number: 16-18-year-old headcount 1,341 1,330 1,324
Student Number: 16-18-year-old full lime 1,251 { 1,300 1,233
Student achievement: 16-10-18-year-olds 84.4% 86.0% 83.6%
Student achievement: All {excluding GCSEs) 87.0%  B7.0% 85.6%
Student attendance: Main qualification (full time) 87.2% 91.0% 87.1%
Student ratention: 16-18 year-olds 89.1% 80.0% 92.2%
Student retention: 19+ 91.0% 92.0% 90.2%
| Operating surplus/sector EBITDA as % of income 0.27% 5.18% 6.03%
Staff costs as % of income 66.81% 67.35% | 68.82%
Operating Cash balance £2,800k £928k | £2.274k
Cash days in handfliquidity (adjusted current ratio) 73.42 22.02 66.14
Borrowing as % of income 13.51% 27.43% 15.84%
Financial Health Grade Good Good Good
Financial Health Score 190 220 190
Staff Satisfaction 73.5% 82.0% 74.6%
Ofsted rating Grade 3 Grade 2
(2023) (2017)
Student Achievements

Students continue to prosper at the College, with achievements rates remaining high:

Academic Year | Achievement
%

2017/18 86.3% ]
[2018/189 B7.1%

2019/20 84.7%

202021 86.1%

2021/22 B3.4%

2022123 84.4%

Financial Performance

The College is committed to achieving strong financial outcomes and values the guidance
provided by the ESFA in relation to best practice; Governors and management use the ESFA
Financial Health Grading System, FE Commissioner Benchmarking and Financial Benchmarking
Tool for Colleges lo assess the College’s financial performance. The current rating of "Good” is
considered an appropriate outcome.

Payment Performance

The Late Payment of Commercial Debts (Interest) Act 1998 requires colleges, in the absence of
agreement to the contrary, to make payments to suppliers within 30 days of either the provision
of goods or services or the date on which the invoice was received. The target set by the Treasury
for payment to suppliers within 30 days is 95 per cent. During the accounting period 1 August
2022 to 31 July 2023, the College paid supplier invoices at least twice a month to ensure that late
payment opportunities were minimised. The College incurred no late payment fees for this period.

7
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Staff Satisfaction

The College take part in an annual staff satisfaction survey which is then benchmarked against
other colleges across the country. Whilst our results for 2022/23 showed improvement over
2021/22, our current in year staff satisfaction results show some areas thalt need further and
largeted improvement across the collage,

Staff satisfaction remains an area of focus for College management, governers and unions, and
is an area that the College are looking to actively improve its performance on through the coming
academic year with particular emphasis on improving areas such as communication, and staff
wellbeing.

Streamlined Energy and Carbon Reporting

Kendal College is committed to minimising the environmental impact of the College's activities via
continuous improvement in envircnmental performance. It also seeks to develop a culture of
environmental responsibility in all stafl and students as well as in the management of the College's
aslates,

The College’s environmental mission statement is as follows:

“To work towards a sustainable future by generaling and implementing practical and
achievable solutions to develop an environmentally conscious, economically sustainable
and socially aware community”.

The College has developed an Environmental Sustainability Policy, which was approved by the
Board of Governors in March 2023, and is in the process of developing a Sustainability Action
Plan as well as engaging specialists to assist in the development of a suitable carbon reporting
mathadology.

Trade Union Facility Time

The Trade Union (Facility Time Publication Requirements) Regulations 2017 require the College
to publish information on facilily time arrangements for Trade Union officials at the College.

| Numbers of trade union representalives employed during the year | 5 Il
FTE 3.4 |
Percentage of ime Number of employees
0% 0*

1-50% b
51-99% 1]
100% 10 |

* The number of Union members is unknown to the College. Trade Union time is calculated on
the basis of estimated membership, with 1 hour allocated to every 10 members per week, for 35
weeks.
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Total cost of facility time £17,219.95 =0
Total pay bill £9.421.942.77
Percentage of total bill on facility time 0.18%

[ Time spent on paid trade union activities as a percentage of total paid facility ime [ 100%

Equality and Diversity

Equality

The College is committed to ensuring equality of opportunity for all who learn and work here. We
respect and value positively differences in race or colour, gender, age, sexual orientalion
disability, HIV status, nationality, political or religious beliefs and unrelated criminal convictions or
other specific factors which could resull in discrimination. We strive vigorously to remove
conditions which place people at a disadvantage, and we will actively combat bigotry. The
College’s Equality Policy is resourced, implemented and monitored on a plannad basis and
published on the College’s web site.

The College publishes an Annual Equality Report and Equality Objectives to ensure compliance
with all relevant equality legislation including the Equality Act 2010. The objectives provide a
framework for the College response to commilment to equality, community cehesion and ensure
there is monitoring of achievement gaps for those with protecled characteristics. The objectives
are approved and monitored by the Board and reported in the annually published equality report.
The College undertakes equality impact assessments on all new policies and procedures and
existing policies and procedures on a prioritised basis or at the time of their next review.

The College iz a "Positive about Disabled’ employer and has committed to the principles and
objectives of the Positive aboul Disabled standard. The College considers all employment
applications from disabled persons, bearing in mind the aptitudes of the individuals concerned,
and guarantees an interview (o any disabled applicant who meels the essential criteria for the
post. Where an existing employee becomes disabled, every effort is made to ensure that
employment with the College continues. The College's policy is to provide lraining, career
development and opportunities for promotion which, as far as possible, provide identical
opportunities to those of non-disabled employees.,

Gender Pay Gap Reporting

Kendal College is required by law to publish an annual gender pay gap report. The following
extract is taken from the Gender Pay Gap Report as at 30 May 2023, available from the College

website.

Year ending 31 March 2023
Mean gender pay gap | 11.6% ]
Median gender pﬂ}rgaphﬂ %o

1%



EENDAL COLLEGE

Annual Report and Financial Statements for the Year Ended 21 ) uly 2023

Strategic Report (Continued)

The proportion of males and females in each quartile of the pay distribution are:

Males Females
No. (proportion) No. (proportion)
1 - Lower guartile 22 (19%) | 64 (28%)
2 18 (16%) | B8 (30%)
3 38 (33%) 48 (21%)
4 — Upper quartile 37 (32%) 49 (21%)

These figures have been calculated using the slandard methodologies used in the Equality Act
2010 (General Pay Gap Information) Regulations 2017.

Disability Statement
The College seeks to achieve the objectives set down in the Equality Act 2010

The College is committed to the ethos of a disability-friendly college and will ensure that all
reasonable adjustments are made to provide an assurance that disabled people are treated fairly.

Kendal College is fully accessible and provides specialist equipment such as hearing loops and
radio akds to meel individual learner's specific needs as well as a range of assistive technologies
in the learning centre. Adaptations are made to meet the needs of learners with disabilities, as
appropriate, which includes the offering of supported internships.

A continuing programme of staff development ensures that high quality support is provided by the
College’s SENCOs and Leaming Assistants, appropriate to the needs of students. As an example
of this, a member of College staff is currently undertaking a diagnosis Assessment and Support
for Learners with ADHD in Post-16 Settings course.

The College employs a dedicated student welfare team, including a student counsallor. It has alsa
developed links with a number of external bodies to provide mental health support, such as
counsalling services.

Going Concern

After making appropriate enquiries, the Corporation considers thal the College has adequate
resources to continue in operational existence for the foreseeable future, For this reason, i
continues to adopt the going concern basis in preparing the financial statements.

The College has a strong, experienced and reactive management team and its growth is
monitered by the Education and Skills Funding Agency.

The College has the support of its bankers in respect of cash flow and has prepared cash flow
forecasts for the two years to 31 July 2024, io the best of its knowledge. The College believes it
can and will meet its financial obligations during the next 24 months (years to 31 July 2024 and
2025).

The College has been practical and prudent in making adaptations to the way it operates and

carefully monitored incoms and expendilure. For these reasons, the College's cash flow remains,
and is projected 1o remain, good. The growth in student numbers will also bring in lagged funding
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in 2023/24. The College has demonstrated that it monitors finances closely and adapts when and
where necessary and considers it can and will continue to operate succassiully,

Events after the Reporting Period

As part of a refinancing arrangement approved by the ESFA, the existing £1.9 million Lioyds loan
is due to be repaid in December 2023 when the College will enter into a new, additional loan with
MNatwest for £4.6 million, This new loan, which is secured by a first legal charge on the Milnthorpe
Road campus, is for a term of 25 years at an interest rate of bank base rate plus 2.13% and
subject to covenants on EBITDA.

On 20 November 2023, the College was informed that a joint application with Westmorland &
Furness Council for Levelling Up funding has received approval. As a result of this, the College
anticipates receiving up to £1.6 million of additional funding to support the redevelopment of the
Westmorland Campus.

Disclosure of Information to Auditors

The members who held office at the date of approval of this report confirm that, so far as they are
each aware, there is no relevant audil information of which the College's auditors are unaware;
and each member has taken all the steps that he or she ought to have taken to be aware of any
relevant audit information and to establish that the college’s auditors are aware of that
information.

Approved by order of the members of the corporation on 13 December 2023 and signed on ils
behalf by:

€ ==
J Thedham
Chair of Governors
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Governance Statement

The following statement is provided to enable readers of the annual report and accounts of the
College to obtain a befter understanding of its governance and legal structure. This statement
covers the period from 1 August 2022 to 31 July 2023 and up to the date of approval of the annual
report and financial statemants,

Governance Code
The College endeavours to conduct its business:

I. in accordance with the seven principles identified by the Committee on Standards in
Public Life (selflessness, integrity, objectivity, accountability, openness, honesty and
leadership);

ii. in full accordance with the guidance to colleges from the Association of Colleges (AoC) in
the code of Good Governance for English Colleges (The Code)

In the opinion of the Board of Governors, the College has complied with all the provisions of the
Code, throughout the year ended 31 July 2023, This opinion is based on an external review of
compliance with the Code/Governance Evaluation reporied 1o the board on 12 July 2023, This
extarnal review was undertaken by Perryman, Yeandle and Associales Limited. The Board of
Govemnors recognises that, as a body entrusted with both public and private funds, it has a
particular duty to observe the highest standards of corporate governance at all times. In carrying
out its responsibilities, it takes full account of The Code of Good Governance for English Colleges
issued by the Association of Colleges in March 2015, which it formally adopted in May 2015.

Whilst not having adopted the UK Corporate Governance Code 2018, the Corporation has had
due ragard o its principles and guidance.

The Corporation

Members of the Corporation

The members who served on the Corporation during the year and up to the date of signature of
this report wera as listed in the table on page 23.
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The Governance Framework

It is the Corporation’s responsibility to bring independent judgement to bear on issues of strategy,
performance, resources and standards of conduct.

The Corporation is provided with regular and timely information on the overall financial
performance of the College together with other information such as performance against funding
targets, proposed capital expenditure, quality matters, personnel-related matters and health and
safety and environmental issues. During the year to 31 July 2023 the Corporation met six times
for Board meetings plus held one sirategic planning event and one training event.

The Corporation conducts its business through its scheduled board meetings and statutory
committees, Each committee has terms of reference, which have been approved by the
Corporation. These Commiltees are Audit and Risk, Search and Governance, and Remuneration.
Full minutes of all meetings, except those deemed to be confidential by the Corporation, are
available on the College’s website at www.kendal.ac.uk or from the Clerk to the Corporation at the
College's regisiered address.

The Clerk to the Corporation maintaing a register of financial and personal interests of the
governors and senior managers, including a “fit and proper persons™ check. The regisler is
available for inspection at the above address.

All governors are able to take independent professional advice in furtherance of their duties at
the College's expense and have access to the Clerk to the Corporation, who is responsible to the
Board for ensuring that all applicable procedures and regulations are complied with. The
appoiniment, evaluation and removal of the Clerk are matiers for the Corporation as a whole.

Formal agendas, papers and reports are supplied to governors in a timely manner, prior to Board
and Committee meelings, Briefings are also provided on an ad hoc basis and members have
access 1o an e-portal where further reading materials are deposited.

The Corporation has a strong and independent non-execufive element and no individual or group
dominates its decision-making process. The Corporation considers that each of its non-executive
members is independent of management and free from any business or other relationship which
could materially interfere with the exercise of their independent judgament.

There is a clear division of responsibility in that the roles of the Chair and Accounting Officer are
separale.

Appointments to the Corporation

Appointments are made to the Board of Governors when there are vacancies. Consideration is
given to skills sets which would be beneaficial 1o the College in order that the senior managers of
the College receive the appropriate challenge and enquiry at meetings. There is a process for
appointment and induction of Governors, including appropriate fraining. During the year, five new
governors were appointed, one staff governor and three independent govemnors, to replace
governors who lefl during the year.

Members of the Corporalion are appointed for a term of office notl exceeding four years, and
usually complete two terms of office. By exceplion governors are invited to continue beyond two
terms where their expertise is required by the Board, however, no governars exceed the AoC
recommended maximum of four terms.



KENDAL COLLEGE

Annual Report and Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 July 2023

Statement of Corporate Governance and Internal Control (Continued)
Governor Training

All board members of Kendal College Corporation are required to undertake regular training
and the schedule of business includes a bespoke training event that annually includes a
safeguarding update. A record of training is held that includes both the training event, external
training attended by individual govemnors and on-line medules completed by governors.

Annual training completed by the Clerk

As a National Leader of Governance, the Clerk has attended briefings from the Department for
Education, has undertaken training as an external board reviewer with ETF and AoC and has
attended national and regional clerks’ on-line conferences and meetings.

Corporation performance

The Corporation regulary evaluates its own effectiveness. A process of self-assessment is
undertaken annually; using a variely of methods, the Board of Governors makes an overall
judgement on its performance and the outcome of this review is reported in a self-assessmeant
report. This report is approved by the Corporation and is then embedded into the overall College
self-assessment of leadership and management. Methods include individual governor appraisal,
assessment of the Chair's performance, review of performance against key performance
indicators and the Code of Good Governance for English Colleges as well as each committee
reviewing it performance against its terms of reference. Each committee prepares an annual
report on its activities of the previous year.

In line with the DfE's Governance Handbook 2023, the Corporation commissioned an external
review if the effectiveness of the board during the year to 31 July 2023. This review was
conducted by Perryman, Yeandle and Associales Limited in May 2023 and concluded that “there
15 strong evidence that the Board is effective and consistently impacts positively on college
effectiveness and outcomes”. The outcomes of the report have been input into the College
improvemeani plan,

The external review by Perryman, Yeandle and Associates formed the basis for the Corporation’s
self-assessment of its performance, against the educational and inspection framework, and the
Corporation graded itself as "Good” on the Ofsted scale.

Search and Governance Committes

The Search and Govemnance Commitlee comprises five members of the Corporation and
operates in accordance with written terms of reference, approved by the Corporation.

The Commitlee meels on a termly basis to advise the Corporation on the appointment and re-
appointment of eligible members; to consider the composition and balance of the Corporation
and its committees; undertake regular skills audits and devise and implement a8 Governor
Development & Improvement Plan to address identified skills gaps; monitor governor attendance
and monitor the Boards compliance with statutory requirements, including instrument and articles
of governance and the AoC Good Governance for English Colleges guidance.
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Remunaration Committee

The College’s Remuneration Committee comprises four members of the Corporation, excluding
staff and student members. The Committee's responsibilities are to make recommendations 1o
the Board on the remuneration of the designated senior post-holders including Principal, senior
finance pergon and Clerk as well as reviewing their performanca.

On the recommendation of the Remuneration Committee, the College adopted the AoC's Senior
Staff Remuneration Code.

Details of remuneration for the year ended 31 July 2023 are set out in note 6 to the financial
statements.

Audit and Risk Committes

The Audil and Risk Committee comprizses a minimum of three and no more than four members
of the Corporation {excluding the Accounting Officer and Chair), and finance and audit specialists
as co-opted members, The Commiltee operates in accordance with writlen lerms of reference

approved by the Corporation.

The Audit and Risk Commitiee meets on a termly basis and provides a forum for reparting by the
College's internal, regularity and financial statements auditors, who have access lo the

Committee for independent discussion, without the presence of College management. The
Committee also receives and considers reports from the main FE funding bodies as they affect
the College’s business.

The College's internal auditors review the systems of internal control, risk management controls
and governance procasses in accordance with an agreed plan of input and report their findings
to management and the Audit & Risk Committee.

Management is responsible for the implementation of agreed audit recommendations and internal
audit undertakes periodic follow-up reviews to ensure such recommendations have been
implementad.

The Audit and Risk Committee also advises the Corporation on the appointment of internal,
regularity and financial statements auditors and their remuneration for both audit and non-awdit

work as well as reporting annually to the Corporation.

The Audit and Risk Committea met four times in the year to 31 July 2023, The members of the
Committee and their attendance records are shown below:

—

. Committee membar Meetings attended
[P (Out of a possible)
MNeil Boggin (Chair) 4 (out of 4)
Pam Duke {co-opted member) _ 1 (out of 2)
Kirsty Heywood-MacDonald (co-opted member) 3 (out of 4)
| John Mansergh 4 {out of 4) |
| Ben Rockliffe 3 (out of 4)
| Helen Price 2 (out of 2)

%
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Finance and Resources Working Group

The Finance and Resources Working Group was established to provide additional monitoring of
financial resilience for the Corporation. The working group has no delegated powers to determine
matters on behalf of the Corporation but acts in an advisory capacity to the Board of Governors,
working with senior and other managers to provide assurance.

The working group meets on, at least, a termly basis and comprises a minimum of two governors
and may include persons co-opted by the Corporation. Advisors or third parties may also be
invited to meetings 1o provide specialist input.

Internal Control

Scope of Responsibility

The Corporation s ullimalely responsible for the College’s system of internal control and for
reviewing its effectiveness. Howaver, such a system is designed to manage rather than eliminate
the risk of failure 1o achieve business cobjectives and can provide only reasonable and not
absolute assurance against material misstatement or loss.

The Corporation has delegated the day-to-day responsibility to the Principal, as Accounting
Officer, for maintaining a sound system of internal control that supports the achievement of the
College’s policies, aims and objectives, whilst safeguarding the public funds and assets for which
they are personally responsible, in accordance with the responsibilities assigned to them in the
Financial Memorandum/ Financial Agreement between Kendal College and the funding body and
the OfS registration conditions. They are also responsible for reporting to the Corporation any
material weaknesses or breakdowns in internal control.

The Purpose of the System of Internal Control

The system of internal control is designed to manage risk to a reasonable level rather than to
eliminate all rigk of failure to achieve policies, aims and objectives; it can therefore only provide
reasonable and not absolute assurance of effectiveness.

The system of internal control is based on an ongoing process designed to identify and prioritise
the risks to the achievement of College policies, aims and objectives, to evaluate the likelihood
of those risks being realised and the impact should they be realised, and to manage them
efficiently, effectively and economically, The system of internal control has been in place in
Kendal College for the year ended 31 July 2023 and up to the date of approval of the annual
report and accounts.

Capacity to Handle Risk

The Corporation has reviewed Ihe key risks to which the College is exposed togather with the
operating, financial and compliance controls that have been implemented to mitigate these risks.
This review included consideration of the arrangements for ensuring that the College complies
with legal and regulatory requirements including those relating to the regularity and propriety of
the use of the public funding. The Corporation is of the view that there is a formal ongoing process
for identifying, evaluating and managing the College’s significant risks that has been in place for
the pariod ending 31 July 2023 and up to the date of approval of the annual report and accounts.
This process is regularly reviewed by the Corporation.
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The key risks to which the Corporation is exposed are outlined within the Strategic Report, on
page 14. The Risk Register is reviewed at every meeting of the Audit and Risk Committee and
prior to any changes in the College's business operations, or following significant events (e.g.
COVID-19).

The Risk and Control Framework

Where possible, systems and processes of internal control are implemented in response fo
identified risks to mitigate any potential impact on the College.

The system of internal control is based on a framework of regular management information,
administrative procedures including the segregation of duties, and a system of delegation and
accountability. In particular, it includes:

= comprehensive budgeting systems with an annual budget, which is reviewed and
agreed by the Board of Governors;

= regular reviews by the Board of Governors of periodic and annual financial reports which
indicate financial performance against forecasts;

= setling targets 1o measure financial and other performance,
« clearly defined capital investment control guidefines
« the adoption of formal project management disciplines, where approprate.

The effectiveness of such systems of internal control are subject to review by the College’s
internal auditors and an annual review undertaken by the Board of Governors,

Kendal College has engaged an internal audit service, which operates in accordance with the
requirements of the ESFA’s Post 16 Audit Code of Practice. The work of the internal audit service
is informed by an analysis of the risks to which the College is exposed, and annual internal audit
plans are based on this analysis. The analysis of risks and the internal audit plans are endorsed
by the Corporation on the recommendation of the Audit and Risk commitiee. Al minimum
annually, the Head of Internal Audit (HIA) provides the Board of Governors with a report on
internal audit activity in the College. The report includes the HIA's independent opinicn on the
adequacy and effectiveness of the College's system of risk management, controls and
gOVErnance processes.

Control Weaknesses |dentified

During the year to 31 July 2023, internal audit reviews were conducted into the Ceollege's capital
strategy and projects; learning support and high needs funding; health and safety; key financial
controls ralating to the sales ledger and income and performance management processes. A
benchmarking exercise was also undertaken in relation to business support costs. A number of
low and medium priority recommendations were made to the Corporation, as a result of these
reviews, all of which have been addressed during the penocd.

A follow-up review of management progress with implementing agreed internal audil
recommendations is undertaken by the Internal audit team annually; the outcome of this review
is reported to the Audit and Risk Commitiee. All internal audil recommendations from the year (o
31 July 2022 have been implemented (95%) or partially implemented (3%).

The Audit and Risk Committee iz satisfied that the action taken is sufficient to address the conlrol
wieakness.

il
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Responsibilities under Funding Agreements

The Department for Education and Education and Skills Funding Agency introduced new controls
for the College on 29 Novemnber 2022, the day that the Office for National Statistics reclassified
colleges as public sector organisations in the national accounts. The ESFA chief executive
communicated these changes to all college accounting officers and explained plans to intraduce
a college financial handbook in 2024, The college has reviewed its policies, procedures and
approval processes in line with these new requirements to ensure there are systems in place to
identify and handie any transactions for which DfE approval is required.

In line with these new requirements, the College obtained DfE approval for the new loan entered
into with Lioyds bank in February 2023.

Statement from the Audit and Risk Committee

The Audit & Risk Committee has advised the Board of Governors that the corporation has an
effective framework for governance and risk management in place based upon its programme of
internal reviews and deep dives. The Audit & Risk Committee believes the corperation has
effective internal controls in place.

Review of Effectiveness

As Accounting Officer, the Principal has responsibility for reviewing the effectiveness of the
system of internal conirel. Their review of the effectiveness of the system of internal control is
informed by:

» the work of the internal auditors:

= the work of the execulive managers within the College who have responsibility for the
devalopment and maintenance of the intarnal control framework:

* comments made by the College's financial statements audilors, the regularity auditors,
the appointed funding auditors in their management letters and other reports.

The Accounting Officer has been advised on the implications of the result of their review of the
effectiveness of the system of internal control by the Audit and Risk Committee, which overseas
the work of the internal auditor and other sources of assurance, and a plan to address
waaknessaes and ensure continuous improvement of the system is in place.

The Accounting Officer and senior management team receives reports setting out key
performance and risk indicators and considers possible control issues brought to their attention
by early warning mechanisms, which are embedded within the depariments and reinforced by
risk awareness training. The Accounting Officer, senior management team and the Audit and Risk
Committee also receive regular reports from internal audit and other sources of assurance, which
include recommendations for improvement. The Audit and Risk Commitlee's role in this area is
confined to a high-level review of the arrangements for internal control.,

The Cerporalion’s agenda includes a regular item for consideration of risk and control and
receives reports thereon from the senior management team and the Audit and Risk Commities.
The emphasis is on obtaining the relevant degree of assurance and not merely reporting by
exception. At its July 2023 meeting, the Corporation carried out the annual assessment for the
year ended 31 July 2023 by considering documentation from the senier management team and
internal audit and taking account of events since 31 July 2023,
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Statement of Corporate Governance and Internal Control (Continued)

Based on the advica of the Audit and Risk Committee and the Accounting Officer, the Corporation
is of the opinion that the College has an adequate and effective framework for governance, risk
management and control, and has fulfilled its statutory responsibility for “the effective and efficient
use of resourcas, the solvency of the institution and the body and the safeguarding of their

assets”.

Approved by order of the members of the Corporation on 13 December 2023 and signed on ils
behalf by:

_— X _,.-_I"_ “ i
g “= = -
J Thedham K Mash
Chair of Governors Accounting Officer
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Statement of Regularity, Propriety and Compliance

As accounting officer, | confirm that the Corporation has had due regard to the framework of
authorities governing regularity, priority and compliance, and the requirements of grant funding
agreements and contracts with ESFA, and has considered its responsibility to notify ESFA of
material irregularity, impropriety and non-compliance with those authoriies and terms and
conditions of funding.

| confirm on behall of the Corperation that after due enquiry, and to the best of my knowledge, |
am able to identify any material irregular or improper use of funds by the Corporation, or material
nan-compliance with the framework of authorities and the terms and conditions of funding under
the Corporation’s grant funding agreements and contracts with ESFA, or any other public funder.
This includes the elements outlined in the “Dear accounting officer” letter of 29 November 2022
and ESFA's bite size guides.

I confirm that no instances of material irregularity, impropriety, funding noncompliance, or non-
compliance with the framework of authorities have been discovered to date. If any instances are
identified after the date of this statement, these will be nofified to ESFA.

K Mash
Accounting Officer
13 December 2023

Statement of the Chair of Governors

On behalf of the Corporation, | confirm that the Accounting Officer has discussed their
statement of regularity, propriety and compliance with the board and that | am content
that it is materially accurate,

J Thedham
Chair of Governors
13 December 2023

£
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Statement of Responsibilities of the Members of the
Corporation

The members of the Corporation, as charity truslees, are required to present audiled financial
statements for each financial year.

Within the terms and conditions of the Corporation’s grant funding agreements and contracts with
the ESFA, the Corporation, through its Accounting Officer, is required to prepare financial
statements and an operating and financial review for each financial year in accordance with the
2019 Statement of Recommended Practice — Accounting for Further and Higher Education,
ESFA's College Accounts Direction and the UK's Generally Accepted Accounting Praclice, and
which give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the College and its surplus / deficit of
income over axpenditure for that period.

In preparing the financial statements, the Corporation is required to:

select suitable accounting policies and apply them consistently,

» make judgements and estimates that are reasonable and prudent;

» state whether applicable UK Accounting Standards have been followed, subject 1o any
material departures disclosed and explained in the financial statements;

« assess whaether the corporation is a going concern, noling the key supporting
assumptions qualifications or mitigating actions as appropriale; and

« prepare financial statements on the going concern basis, unless it is inappropriate to
assume that the college will continue in operation.

The Corporation is also required to prepare a Members repor, in accordance with paragraphs
3.23 to 3.27 of the FE and HE SORP, which describes what it is trying o do and how it is going
about it, including information about the legal and administrative status of the Corporation.

The Corporation is responsible for keeping proper accounting records which disclose with
reasonable accuracy, at any time, the financial position of the College, and which enable it to
ensure that the financial statements are prepared in accordance with the relevant legislation
including the Further and Higher Education Act 1992 and Charilies Act 2011, and relevant
accounting standards. It is responsible for taking steps that are reasonably open o it o safeguard
its assets and to prevent and detect fraud and other irregularities.

The maintenance and integrity of the College website is the responsibility of the Corporation; the
work carried out by the auditors does not involve consideration of these matters and, accordingly,
the auditors accept no responsibility for any changes that may have occurred to the financial
statements since they were initially presented on the website. Legislation in the United Kingdom
governing the preparation and dissemination of financial statements may differ from legislation in
other jurisdictions.

Members of the Corporation are rasponsible for ensuring that expenditure and income are applied
for the purposes intended and that the financial ransactions conform to the authorities that govemn
them. In addition, they are responsible for ensuring that all the funds from the ESFA, and any
other public funds, are used only in accordance with the ESFA's grant funding agreement and
contracts and any other conditions that may by prescribed from time to time by the ESFA, or any
other public funder, including that any fransactions enterad into by the Corporation are within the
delegated authorities set out in the "Dear accounting officer” letter of 28 November 2022 and the
ESFA's bite size guides.,

i
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Statement of Responsibilities of the Members of the
Corporation (continued)

Members of the Corporation must ensure that there are appropriate financial and management
controls in place in order to safeguard public and other funds and to ensure that they are used
properly. In addition, members of the Corporation are responsible for securing economical,
efficient and effective management of the College’s resources and expenditure, so that the
benefits that should be derived from the application of public funds from the ESFA and other
public bodies are not put at risk.

Approved by order of the members of the Corporation on 13 December 2023 and signed on its
behalf by:

—

CediEn D

J Thedham
Chair of Governors
13 December 2023
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Independent Auditor’s Report to the Governing Body of

Kendal College

Opinion

We have audiled tha financial statements of Kendal College (the “College’) for the year ended 31
July 2023 which comprise the college statement of comprehensive income, the college balance
sheet, the college statement of changes in reserves, the college statement of cash flows and
notes to the financial statements, including significant accounting policies. The financial reporting
framework that has been applied in their preparation is United Kingdom Accounting Standards,

including FRS 102 'The Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and Republic of
Ireland’ (United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice).

In our opinicn, the financial statemenis:

« give a true and fair view of the state of the College's affairs as at 31 July 2023 and of the
College's surplus/deficit of income over expenditure for the year then ended;

s« have been properly prepared in accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted
Accounting Practice.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK) (15As (UK])
and applicable law. Our responsibiliies under those standards are further described in the
Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements section of our reporl. We are
independent of the College in accordance with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our
audit of the financial statements in the UK, including the FRC's Ethical Standard and we have
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements. We believe that
the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion,

Conclusions relating to going concern

In auditing the financial statements, we have concluded that the govemnors' use of the going
concern basis of accounting in the preparation of the financial statements is appropriate.

Based on the work we have performed, we have not idenlified any material uncertainties relating
to events or conditions that, individually or collectively, may cast significant doubt on the College’s
ability o continue as a going concem for a period of at least twelve months from when the financial
statemenis are authorised for issue.

Qur responsibilities and the responsibilities of the governors with respect 1o going concern are
described in the relevant sections of this report.
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Independent Auditor's Report to the Governing Body of
Kendal College (continued)

Other information

The other information comprises the information included in the Report and Financial Statements
other than the financial statements and our auditor's report thereon. The governors are
responsible for the other information contained within the Report and Financial Statements. Our
opinion on the financial statements does nol cover the other information and we do not express
any form of assurance conclusion thereon,

Our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing s0, consider whether the other
infermation is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in
the course of the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If we identify such material
inconsistencies or apparent material misstatemenis, we are required to determine whether this
gives rise to a material misstatement in the financial statements themselves. If, based on the work
we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information,
we are required to repor that fact.

We have nothing to report in this regard.

Opinion on other matters prescribed by the Office for Students' Accounts

Direction

In our opinion, in all material respects:

« funds from whatever source administered by the College for specific purposes have been
properly applied to those purposes and managed in accordance with relevant legislation;

+ funds provided by the Office for Students, UK Research and Innovation (including Research
England), the Education and Skills Funding Agency and Department for Education have been
applied in accordance with the relevant lerms and conditions: and

« the requirements of the Office for Students’ accounts direction for the relevant year's financial
statements have been met.

Matters on which we are required to report by exception

We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters where the Post-16 Audit Code of
Practice 2022 to 2023 issued by the Education and Skills Funding Agency requires us to report
te you if, in our opinion adequate accounting records have not been kept

We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters where the Office for Students'
accounts direction requires us to report to you if:

. the Cellege's grant and fee income, as disclosed in the note 3A to the accounts, has been
matenally misstated.
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Independent Auditor’s Report to the Governing Body of
Kendal College (continued)

Responsibilities of the Governing Body of Kendal College

As explained more fully in the Statement of Responsibilities of the Members of the Corporation
set out on pages 32 and 33, the Governing Body is responsible for the preparation of financial
statements and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view, and for such intemnal control
as the Governing Body determine is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements
that are free from material misstatemeant, whether due to fraud or error,

In preparing the financial statements, the Governing Body is responsible for assessing the
College’s ability to continue as a going concem, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concem basis of accounting unless the Governing Body either intend
to liquidate the College or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

QOur objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a
whole are free from material misstatement, whather due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's
report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with 15SAs (UK) will always detect a malerial
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

The extent to which the audit was considered capable of detecting
irregularities, including fraud

Irregularities are instances of non-compliance with laws and regulations. The objectives of our
audit are 1o obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding compliance with laws and
regulations that have a direct effect on the determination of material amounts and disclosures in
the financial statemeants, to perform audit procedures to help identify instances of non-compliance
with other laws and regulations that may have a material effect on the financial slatements, and
to respond appropriately to identified or suspected non-compliance with laws and regulations
identified during the audit.

In relation to fraud, the objectives of our audit are to identify and assess the risk of material
misstatement of the financial statements due to fraud, to obtain sufficient appropriate audit
evidence regarding the assessed risks of material misstatement due to fraud through designing
and implementing appropriate responses and o respond appropriately fo fraud or suspected
fraud identified during the audit.

Howewer, it is the primary responsibility of management, with the oversight of those charged with
governance, to ensure thal the entity's operations are conducled in accordance with the
provisions of laws and regulations and for the prevention and detection of fraud.

£1 1
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Independent Auditor’s Report to the Governing Body of
Kendal College (continued)

In identifying and assessing risks of material misstatement in respect of irmegularities, including
fraud, the audit engagement team;

+ obtained an understanding of the nature of the sector, including the legal and
regulatory frameworks that the College operates in and how the College is complying
with the legal and regulatory frameworks:

* inguired of management, and those charged with governance, about their own
identification and assessment of the risks of imegularities, including any known actual,
suspected or alleged instances of fraud;

= discussed matters aboul non-compliance with laws and regulations and how fraud
might occur including assessment of how and where the financial statements may be
susceptible to fraud,

As a resull of these procedures, we consider the most significant laws and regulations that have
a direct impact on the financial stalements are FRS 102, Further and Higher Education SORP,
the College Accounts Direction published by the Education and Skills Funding Agency, and
Regulatory Advice 9: Accounts Direction published by the Office for Students. We performed
audit procedures to detect non-compliances which may have a material impact on the financial
statements which included reviewing financial statement disclosures.

The mosl significant laws and regulations that have an indirect impact on the financial statements
are those which are in relation to the Education Inspection Framework under the Education and
Inspections Act 2006, Keeping Children Safe in Education under the Education Act 2002 and the
UK General Data Protection Regulation (UK GDPR) and the Data Protection Act 20158. We
performed audit procedures to inquire of management and those charged with governance
whether the college is in compliance with these law and regulations and inspected
correspondance with regulatory authorities.

The audit engagement team Iidentified the risk of management override of controls as the area
where the financial statements were most susceptible to material misstatement due to fraud. Audit
procedures performed included but were not limited to testing manual journal entries and other
adjustments and evaluating the business rationale in relation to significant, unusual transactions
and transactions entered into oulside the normal course of business, challenging judgments and
astimalas.

A further description of our responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements is located on
the Financial Reporting Council's website at: hitp:/'www.frc.org.ukfauditorsresponsibilities This
description forms part of our auditor's report.

3
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Independent Auditor’s Report to the Governing Body of
Kendal College (continued)

Use of our report

This report is made solely to the Governing Body, as a body, in accordance with the Funding
Agreement published by the Education and Skills Funding Agency and our engagement letter
dated 27 July 2023. Our audit work has been undertaken so thal we might state to the Governing
Bady, as a body, those matlers we are engaged to state to them in an auditor's report and for no
other purpose. To the fullest extent permitied by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility
to anyone other than the Governing Body, as a body, for our audit work, for this report, or for the
opinions we have formed.

bR BRE
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ARMSTRONG WATSON AUDIT LIMITED
Chartered Accountants and Statutory Auditors
Jameas Watson House

Victoria Place

Fozehill

Cumbria

CA1 2UU Dale: (& Coro e e
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Reporting Accountant’s Assurance Report on Regularity

To: The Corporation of Kendal College and Secretary of State for Education
acting through the Education and Skills Funding Agency (ESFA)

In accordance with the terms of our engagement letter dated 27 July 2023 and further to the
requirements and conditions of funding in ESFA’s grant funding agreements and contracts, or
those of any cther public funder, we have carried out an engagement o obtain limited assurance
about whether anything has come to our attention that would suggest, in all material respects,
the expenditure disbursed and income received by Kendal College during the period 1 August
2022 1o 31 July 2023 have not been applied o the purposes identified by Parliament and the
financial transactions do not conform to the authorities which govern them.

The framework that has been applied is set out in the Post 16 Audit Code of Practice (“the Code®)
issued by the ESFA and in any relevant conditions of funding conceming adult education notified
by a relevant funder. In ling with this framework, our work has specifically not considered income
received from the main funding grants generated through the Individualised Learmner Record data
returns, for which the ESFA or devolved authority has other assurance arrangemenis in place.

This report is made solely to the Corporation of Kendal College and ESFA in accordance with tha
terms of our engagement letter. Our work has been undertaken so thal we rmight state to the
Corporation of Kendal College and the ESFA those matlers we are required to state in a report
and for no other purpose. To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume
responsibility to anyone other than the Corporation of Kendal College and the ESFA for our work,
for this report, or for the conclusion we have formed.

Respective responsibilities of Kendal College and the reporting accountant

The Corporation of Kendal College is responsible, under the requirements of the Further & Higher
Education Act 1992, subsequen! legislation and related regulations and guidance, for ensuring
that expenditure disbursed and income received are applied for the purposes intended by
Parliament and the financial transactions conform fo the authorities which govern them.

Our responsibilities for this engagement are established in the United Kingdom by our
profession's ethical guidance and are lo obtain limited assurance and report in accordance with
our engagement letter and the requirements of the Code. We report to you whether anything has
come to our attention in carrying out our work which suggests thal in all material respecis,
expenditure disbursed and income received during the period 1 August 2022 to 31 July 2023
have not been applied to purposes intended by Pariiament or that the financial transactions do
not conform to the authorities which govern them,

Approach
We conducted our engagement in accordance with the Code issued by the ESFA. We performed

a limited assurance engagement as defined in that framework.

The objective of a limited assurance engagement is to perform such procedures as to obtain
information and explanations in order to provide us with sufficient appropriate evidence to express
a negative conclusion on regularity.
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Reporting Accountant’s Assurance Report on Regularity
(continued)

A limited assurance engagement is more limited in scope than a reasonable assurance
engagement and consequently does not enable us o obtain assurance that we would become
aware of all significant matters that might be identified in a reasonable assurance engagement.
Accordingly, we do not express a positive opinion.

Our engagement includes examination, on a test basis, of evidence relevant to the regularity of
the college's income and expenditure.

The work underaken to draw to our conclusion includes:

= A review of the accuracy of the Corporation’s self-assessment of compliance with
regularity and proprietary requirements and review of appropriate evidence and
documentation.

» Review of expenditure systems for compliance with Corporation policy and scheme of
delagation.

« Consideration of staff expense claims in line with policy.
+ Review of procedures in respect of government procurement cards.
# Review of Corporation minutes.

« Consideration of advisory matters from internal auditor's reports.

Conclusion

In the course of our work nothing has come to our attention which suggests that in all material
respects the expenditure disbursed and income received during the period 1 August 2022 1o 31
July 2023 has not been applied to purposes intended by Parliament and the financial transactions
do not conform to the authorities which gevern them.

Signed:

et S5
Fow Cmd 2 ol R ot
ARMSTRONG WATSON AUDIT LIMITED

Chartered Accountants and Statutory Auditors

James Watson House

Rosehill

Carlisle

Cumbria

Cal 2UU Date: I8 Ot poey 2023



KENDAL COLLEGE

Annual Report and Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 July 2023

Statement of Comprehensive Income and Expenditure

For the year ended 31 July 2023

Year ended
31 July 2023 31 July 2022
(Restated)
Notes £'000 £'000
Income
Funding body grants 2 12,112 10,760
Tuition fees and education 3 1,847 2,010
Other income 4 027 824
Investment income 5 19 1
Total income 14,905 13,595
Expenditure
FRS102 LGPS current service cost 23 (1786) (562)
Other staff costs 6 (9,654) {9.061)
Restrucluring costs ] (28) -
Total staff costs & (9,858) (9,623}
Other operating expenses 7 (4,112) (3,352)
Depreciation and amortisation 11, 12 (1,028) (901)
Interest and other finance costs g {199) {240)
Total expenditure (15,197) {14,116)
(Deficit) / Surplus before other (293) (521)
Loss on disposal of assets {3) (2)
(Deficit) / Surplus before tax (296) (523)
Taxation o 10 . -
{Deficit) / Surplus for year (2986) (523)
Unrealised surplus on revaluation 65 G5
Revaluation of defined benefit pension liability 23 2472 6.066
Total Comprehensive Income 2.241 5.608
Represented by:
Restricted comprehensive 34 -
Unrestricted comprehensive 2.207 5,608
Surplus for the year 2,241 5,608

All items of income and expenditure relate to continuing activities.
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Balance Sheet as at 31 July 2023

2022
2023 (Restated)
Motes £'000 £'000
Fixed Assets 11
Tangible fixed assels 30,369 20,652
Intangible fixed assets 12 28 43
30,397 29,695
Current Assets
Stocks 30 27
Debtors 13 1,044 605
Cash at bank and in hand 19 2,800 2,274
3,874 2,906
Current Liabilities
Craditors = amounts falling due within one year 15 (3,503) (3,533)
Net Current Liabilities | Assets 371 (627)
Total Assets less Current Liabilities N 30,768 29,068
Creditors — amounts falling due afler mora than 18 {16,748) (14,974)
one yaar
Provisions for Liabilities
Defined benefit pension scheme 18 - {2,207)
Other provisions 18 (301) (344)
Total Net Assets 13,719 11,543
Unrestricted Reserves
Income and Expenditure Reserve 12,937 10,730
_Revaluation Reserve 748 813
Total Unrestricted Reserves 13,685 11,543
Restricted Reserves 34 -
Total Reserves 13,719 11,543

The financial stalements on pages 41 to 69 were approved and authorised for issue by the
Corporation on 13 December 2023 and were signed on its behalf on that date by:

."-. : ...—.i' T --"'.
= T = i

J Thedham

K Mash
Chair of Governors -

Accounting Officer
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College Statement of Changes in Reserves

Income and Revaluation Restricted Total
Expenditure Reserve Reserve
(Restated)
- £'000 £'000 £'000 £°000

Balance at 1 August 2021 5122 878 - 6.000
Surplus/(deficit) from the income and (523) - - (523)
expanditure account for 2021-22
Other comprehensive income 6,066 - - 6,066
Transfers between revaluation and 65 (65) - -
income and expenditure
Balance at 31 July 2022 10,730 813 - 11,543
Surplusf{deficit) from the income and {330) - 34 (206)
expenditure account for 2022-23
Other comprehensive income 2472 - - 2,472
Transfers between revaluation and 65 (65) - -
income and expendifure
Total Comprehensive Income for 2,207 (65) 34 2,176
the year
Balance at 31 July 2023 12,937 748 34 13,719
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Cash Flow Statements

For the Year ended 31 July 2023

2023 2022
(Restated)
Notes £'000 £'000
Cash flow from operating activities
Surplus/{deficit) for the year (296) (523)
Adjustment for non-cash items
Depreciation 1,029 a0
Pensions costs less contributions payable 265 698
Capital grant releases (488) (383)
(Increase)decrease in stocks (3) (2)
(Increase)/decrease in trade and other deblors {439) (172)
Increase/(decrease) in trade and other creditors due {148) 1,510
within one year
Increasel(decrease) in trade and other credilors due - -
after one year
Increase/{decrease) in provisions (43) (62)
Taxation « -
Adjustment for investing or financing activities
Investment income (19} (1)
Interest payable 109 104
Taxation paid - -
Loss on sale of fixed assets 3 2
Net cash flow from operating activities (30) 2,063
Cash flows from investing activities
Proceeds from sale of fixed assets 3 -
Investment iIncome 19 1
Payments made to acquire fixed assels {1,738) (3.482)
Increase / (decrease) in deferred capital grants :Iil; ; 2123
Capital grants received in advance : -
_apiial granis r Saa 35

Cash flows from financing activities

Interest paid (108) (104)
Interest elements of finance leasa rental payments - -
Mew unsacured loans 2 :
Repayments of amounis borrowed (155) (149)

Capital element of finance lease rental payments

(264) (253)
Increase / (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 19 526 452
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year 2,274 1,822

Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year 2,800 2274
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MNotes to the Financial Statements

For the Year Ended 31 July 2023

1. Statement of accounting policies and estimation techniques

The following accounting policies have been applied consistently in dealing with items which are
considered malterial in relation to the financial statements, unless otherwise stated.

Basis of preparation

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the Statement of
Recommended Practice: Accounting for Further and Higher Education 2019 (the 2019 FE HE
SORP), the College Accounts Direction for 2022-23 and in accordance with Financial Reporting
Standard 102 - "The Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the United Kingdom and
Republic of Ireland” (FRS 102). The college is a public benefit entity and has therefore applied
the relevant public benefit requirements of FRS 102.

The preparation of financial statements in compliance with FRS 102 requires the use of certain
critical accounting estimates. It also requires management 1o axercise judgement in applying the
college's accounting policies.

Basis of accounting
The financial statements are prepared in accordance with the historical cost convention.

The financial stalemenis are presented in sterling. Monetary amounts in these financial
slalements are rounded to the nearast whole £1,000, except where otherwise indicalad,

Going concern

The aclivities of the College, together with the factors likely to affect its future development and
performance are set out in the Strategic Report. The financial position of the College, its cash
flow, liquidity and borrowings are presented in the Financial Statements and accompanying
Motes.

The College's lorecasts and financial projections indicate that it will be able to operate within its
operating cash balances and covenants for the foreseeable future,

a3
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MNotes to the Financial Statements (continued)

Accordingly, the College has a reasonable expectation that it has adequale resources to conlinue
o meet its liabilities as they fall due for the foreseeable future and have, therafore, prepared these
statements on a going concern basis.

Recognition of income
Revenue grant funding

Government revenue granis, including funding body recurrent grants and other grants, are
accounted for under the accrual model, as permitted by FRS102, and are recognised where a
reliable estimate of the fair value of the assal received or recaivable can be made on a systematic
basis over the periods in which the related costs for which the grant compensales are recognised.

Funding body recurrent grants are measured in line with best estimates for the period of what is
receivable and depend on the particular income stream involved,

* 16 — 18 learner responsive funding is not normally subject to reconciliation and is
therefore not subject to confract adjustments and is recognised when receivable.

« Lewvy-funded and ESFA funding for co-investment model apprenticeships income is
measured in line with best estimates of the provision delivered in the year,

= The recurrent grant from OFS represents the funding allocations atiributable to the
current financial year and is credited direct to the Statement of Comprahensive Income
when received or receivable.

+ Adull Education Budget (AEB) grant funding income recognised is a best estimate of
the amount receivable in accordance with the annual main funding guidance published
by the ESFA and either determined as part of the reconciliation process or by separale
agreement between the College and the ESFA at the reporting period end date. Any
subsequent agreement to determination of the AEE funding after the reporting end
date which is not provided for in the annual main funding guidance is not reflacted in
the income recognised. For 2022/23, the ESFA have announced that there will be a
tolerance of 90% for clawback of AEB; a small clawback in the region of £5k is
expeclied.

Whaere part of a government grant is deferred, the deferred element is recognised as deferred
income within creditors and allocated between creditors due within one year and creditors due
after more than one year, as appropriate.

Grants from non-government sources, including grants relating to assels, are recognised in
income when the College is entitled to the income and performance related conditions have baean
mel. Income received in advance of performance related conditions being met is recognised as
deferred income within creditors on the balance sheet and released to income as the conditions
are mel.
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Capital grant funding — government grants

Government capital grants for assets are accounted for under the accruals model, as permitted
by FRS102. The grant income received, or receivable is held as deferred income and released
to income over the axpected useful life of the assat,

Other, non-governmental, capital grants are recognised in income when the college is entitled to
the funds subject to any performance related conditions being mel. Income received in advance
of performance related conditions being met is recognised as deferred income within creditors on
the Balance Sheet and released to income as conditions are met.

Fee income

Income from tuition fees is stated gross of any expenditure which is not a discount and is
recognised in the period for which it is received.

Investment income

All income from short term deposits is credited to the income and expenditure account in the
period in which it is eamed on a receivable basis.

Agency arrangements

The College acls as an agency in distributing certain discretionary support funds, including
Bursaries received from the ESFA. Related payments received from the funding bodies and
subsequen! disbursements to students are excluded from the income and expenditure of the
College where the College is exposed to minimal risk or enjoys minimal economic benefit related
to the transaction,

Accounting for post-employment benefits

Retirement benefits to employees of the College are provided by the Teachers' Pension Scheme
(TPS) and the Local Government Pension Scheme (LGPS). These are defined benefit plans,
which are externally funded and contracted out of the State Second Pension.

Teachers' Pension Scheme (TPS)

The TPS is an unfunded scheme. Contributions to the TPS are calculated to spread the cost of
pensions over employees’ working lives with the College in such a way that the pension cost is a
substantially level percentage of current and fulure pensionable payroll. The contributions are
determined by qualified actuaries on the basis of valuations using a prospective benefit method.

The TPS is a multi-employer scheme and there is insufficient information available to use defined
benefit accounting. The TPS is therefore accounted for as a defined contribution scheme, with
the amount charged to the statement of comprehensive income being the contributions payable
in the year. Differences between contributions payable in the year and contributions actually paid
are shown as either accruals or prepayments.
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Cumbria County Council Local Government Pension Scheme (LGPS)

The LGPS is a funded scheme, and the assets of the scheme are held separately and measured
using closing fair values. LGPS liabilities are measured using the projected unit credit meathod
and discounted at the current rate of return on a high-quality corporate bond of equivalent term
and currency to the liabilities. The acluarial valuations are obtained at leas! riennially and are
updated at each balance sheet date. The amounts charged o operating surplus are the current
service costs and the costs of scheme introductions, benefit changes, settlements and
curlailments. They are included as part of staff costs as incurred.

The net interest cost on the net defined benefit liability/asset is charged to comprehensive income
and comprises the interest cost on the defined benefit obligation and interest income on the
scheme assets, calculated by multiplying the fair value of the scheme assels at the beginning of
the period by the rate used to discount the benefit obligations. The difference between the interast
income on the scheme assets and the actual retumn on the scheme assels is recognised in interest

and other finance costs.
Actuarial gains and losses are recognised immediately in actuarial gains and losses.
Short term employment benefits

Shert lerm employment benefits such as salaries and compensaled absences (holiday pay) are
recognised as an expense in the year in which the employees render service to the College. The
cost of any unused holiday entitiement which the College expecis lo pay in future periods is
recognised in the period the employee's services are rendered, this cost is measured as the
additional amount the college expects to pay as a result of the unused element.

Enhanced pensions

The actual cost of any enhanced ongoing pension to a former member of staff is paid by the
College annually. An estimate of the expected future cost of any enhancement 1o the ongoing
pension of a former member of staff is charged in full to comprehansive income in the year that
the member of staff retires. In subsequent years a charge is made to provisions in the balance
sheet.

Tangible fixed assets

Tangible fixed assels are slated at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated
impairment losses.

Where parts of a fixed assel have different useful lives, they are accounted for as separate items
of fixed assets.

Land and buildings

Land and buildings inherited from the Local Education Authority are stated in the balance sheel
at valuation on the basis of depreciated replacement. The associated credit is included in the
revaluation reserve. The difference between depreciation charged on the historic cost of assels
and the actual charge for the year calculated on the revaluad amount is released to the income
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and expendilure account reserve on an annual basis. Building improvements made since
incorporation are included in the balance sheet at cost

Freahold land is not depreciated as it is considered to have an infinite useful life.

Freehold buildings are depreciated over their expected useful economic life to the College of
between 5 and 50 years. The College has a policy of depreciating major adaptations to buildings
over the period of their useful economic life of between 5 and 50 years.

On adoption of FRS 102, the College followed the transitional provision to retain the book value
of land and buildings, which were revalued in 1996 as deemed cost, but not to adopt a policy of
revaluations of these properties in the future.

Long leasehold

Land and buildings held under long leases, where the ‘risks and rewards’ of ownership have
passed lo the College are included on the balance sheel at their fair value and depreciated over
the period of the leasa. Fair values are delermined by reference to professional valuations taking
inte account the specialist nature of the properties- a depreciated replacement cost basis is used.

Assefs under construction

Assals under construction are accounted for at cost, basad on the valua of archilects’ certificates
and other direct costs, incurred to 31 July. They are not depreciated until they are brought into
use,

Equipment

Equipmant costing less than £1,000 per individual itern is recognised as expenditure in the period
of acquisition. All other equipmeant is capitalised at cost.

Capitalised equipmen! is depreciated on a straight- line basis over its useful economic life as
follows:

+ Technical or other equipment — 5 to 10 years
s  Motor vehicles — 5 years

»« Computer equipment = 5 to 8 years

« Furniture, fixtures and fittings — 10 years

« Solar panels — 25 years

Equipmenlt inherited from the local education authority is included in the balance sheet at
valuation. This equipment was depreciated on a straight-line basis over its remaining useful
economic life to the College, of between one and three years from incorporation, and is now fully
depreciated.
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Intangible assels

Intangible assets meeting the recognition criteria of section 18 of FRS102, and costing £1,000 or
mare, are capitalised on the balance sheet and amortised on a straight-line basis over their useful
aconomic life. Such assets include software development in relation to the College website and
systems implementation. Amortisation pericds range between 3 to 3 years.

Subsequant expenditure on existing fixed assels

Where significant expenditure is incurred on tangible fixed assels after initial purchase it is
charged to income in the period it is incurred, unless it increases the future benefit to the College,
in which case it is capitalised and depreciated on the relevant basis.

Grant Funded Assels

Where a tangible fixed asset, including land and buildings, is acquired with the aid of specific
grants, it is capitalised and depreciated in accordance with the above policy. The related grant is
credited to a deferred capital grant account within creditors and released to the statement of
comprehensive income over the expected useful economic life of the related equipment, on a
systematic basis consistent with the depreciation policy.

Assel impairment

A review for impairment of a fixed asset is carried out if events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the carrying value of any fixed asset may not be recoverable. Shortfalls between the
carrying value of fixed assets and their recoverable amounts are recognised as impairments.
Impairment losses are recognised in the Statement of Comprehensive Income and Expenditure.

Borrowing costs
Borrowing costs are recognised as expenditure in the period in which thay are incurrad.

Leased assets

Costs in respect of operaling leases are charged on a straight-line basis over the lease term to
the Statement of Comprehensive Income and Expendilure. Any lease premiums or incenlives
relating to leases signed after 1* August 2014 are spread over the minimum leasa term. The
College has taken advantage of the transitional exemptions in FRS 102 and has retained the
policy of spreading lease premiums and incantives to the date of the first markel review for leases
signed before 1" August 2014,

Leasing agreements which transfer to the College substantially all the benefils and risks of
ownership of an asset are treated as finance leases.

The College does not hold any assets under finance leases.

Minimum lease payments are apporiioned between the finance charge and the reduction of the
outstanding liability. The finance charges are allocated over the period of the lease in proportion
to the capital elemant outstanding.
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Stocks

Stocks are stated at the lower of their cost (using the first in first out method) and net realisable
value, being selling price less costs to complete and sell. Where necessary, provision is made for
obsolete, slow-moving and defective stocks.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash includes cash in hand, deposits repayable on demand and overdrafts. Deposits are
repayable on demand if they are in praclice available within 24 hours without penalty.

Cash equivalents are short term, highly liquid investments that are readily convertible to known
amounts of cash with insignificant rik of change in value. An investment qualifies as a cash
equivalent when it has maturity of 3 months or less from the dale of acquisition.

Financial liabilities and equities

Finance liabilities and equity are classified according to the substance of the financial instrument’s
coniractual obligations, rather than the financial instrument’s legal form.

All loans, investments and short-term deposits are classified as basic financial instrumenis in
accordance with FRS 102, These instruments are initially recorded at the transaction price less
any transaction costs (historical cost). FRS 102 requires that basic financial instruments are
subsequently measured at amortised cost, however the college has calculated that the difference
between the historical cost and amortised cost basis is not material and so these financial
instruments are stated on the balance sheet at historic cost. Loans and investmenis that are
payable within one year are not discountad.

Foreign currency translation

Transactions denominated in foreign currencies are recorded using the rate of exchange ruling
at the date of the transaction.

Taxation

The College is considered to pass the tests set out in Paragraph 1 Schedule 6 Finance Act 2010
and therefore it meets the definition of a charitable company for UK corporation tax purposes.
Accordingly, the College is polentially exempt from taxation in respect of income or capital gains
recaived within categories covered by sections 478-488 of the Corporation Tax Act 2010 or
Section 256 of the Taxation of Chargeable Gains Act 1992, to the extent that such income or
gains are applied exclusively to charitable purposes.

The College is partially exempt in respect of Value Added Tax, so that it can only recover a minor
element of VAT charged on its inputs. Imecoverable VAT on inputs is included in the costs of such
inputs and added to the cost of tangible fixed assets as appropriate, where the inputs themselves
are langible fixed assels by nature.
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Provisions and Contingent Liabilities

Provisions are recognised when the College has a present legal or constructive obligation as a
result of a past event, it is probable that a transfer of economic benefit will be required to settle the
obligation and the amount of the obligation can be reliably measured.

A contingent liability arises from a past event that gives the College a possible obligation whose
existence will only be confirmed by the occurrence or otherwise of uncertain future events not wholly
within the control of the College. Contingent liabilities also arise in circumstances where a provision
would otherwise be made but either it is not probable that an outflow of resources will be required
or the amount of the obligation cannot be measured reliably. Contingent Kabilities are not
recognised in the balance sheet but are disclosed in the notes lo the financial statements.

Judgements in applying accounting policies and key sources of estimation uncertainty

Estimate and judgements are continually evaluated and are based on historical experience and
other factors, including expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable under
the circumstances,

In preparing these financial statements, management have made the following judgements:

« Determining whether leases entered into by the College as either a lessor or a lessee
are operating or finance leases. These decisions depend on an assessment of
whether the risks and rewards of ownership have been transferred from the lessor to
the lessee on a lease by lease basis; and

« Determining whether there are indicators of impairment of the College’s tangible
assets. Faclors laken into consideration in reaching such a decision include the
economic viability and expected future financial performance of the asset and where
it is @ component of a larger cash-generating unit, the viability and expected future
performance of that unit.

« Estimating the level of Holiday Pay accrual based on historic average number of days
untaken holiday entitlermeant at 31 July 2023,

Other key sources of estimation uncertainty include:

« Tangible fixed assets, other than investment properties, are depreciated over their
useful lives taking into account residual values, where appropriate. The actual lives of
the assets and residual values are assessed annually and may vary depending on a
number of factors. In re-assessing asset lives, factors such as technological innovation
and maintenance programmes are taken inlo account. Residual value assessments
consider issues such as future market conditions, the remaining life of the asset and
projected disposal values.

52



KENDAL COLLEGE

Annual Report and Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 July 2023

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

» The presenl value of the Local Governmen! Pension Scheme defined benefil
asselliability depends on a number of factors that are determined on an actuarial
basis using a variety of assumptions. The assumptlions used in determining the net
cost (income) for pensions include the discount rate. Any changes in these
assumptions, which are disclosed in note 23 will impact the carrying amount of the
pension liability. The actuary has used a roll forward approach which projects resulis
from the latest full actuarial valuation performed at 31 March 2019 to value the
pensions liability at 31 July 2023. Any differences between the figures derived from
the roll forward approach and a full actuarial valuation would impact on the carrying

amount of the pansion liability.

2. Funding body grants

Year ended Year ended
31 July 2023 31 July 2022
: £'000 £'000
Recurrent grants
ESFA 16-18 7,578 G575
ESFA adult education budget 908 891
ESFA apprenticeships (funded) 2,735 2,583
Office for students 63 62
Specific grants
Teachers' Pension Scheme contribution grant 340 264
Releases of government capital grants 488 384
_Other funds - 1
Total 12,112 10,760
3. Tuition fees and education contracts
Year ended Year ended
31 July 2023 31 July 2022
(Restated)
= E'000 £'000
Tuition fees 700 722
Advanced Learner Loans 137 299
_Education contracts 1,010 989
Total 1,847 2,010
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3.A. Total grant and fee income

Year ended Year ended
31 July 2023 31 July 2022
£'000 £'000
Grant income from Office for Students 63 62
Grant income from other bodies 12,049 10,698
Total Funding Body Grants 12,112 10,760
4. Other income
Year ended
Year ended 31 July 2022
31 July 2023 (Restated)
£'000 £'000
Calering (and residences) 402 358
Other income generating activities 79 101
Mon-government capital grants Z .
Miscellaneous income 445 364
Total 927 824
5. Investment income
Year ended Year ended
31 July 2023 31 July 2022
B £'000 £000
Income from bank deposits 19 1
Total 19 1
6. Staff costs
The average number of persons (including key management personnel) employed by the
College during the year was:
Year ended Year ended
31 July 2023 31 July 2022
(Restated)
No. MNo.
Teaching staff 214 203
MNon-teaching staff 134 152
349 a55

The figures for the year ended 31 July 2022 have been restated to include staff employed on
casual (or zero hours) contracts. The average FTE number of staff employed by the College in

the year ended 31 July 2023 was 225 (2022: 215).
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Staff costs for the above persons

Year ended Year ended
31 July 2023 31 July 2022

x £000 £000_
Wages and salaries 6,965 6,448
Casual staffing 327 353
Social security costs G669 626
Other pension costs 1,692 1,985
Payroll sub total 9,653 9,412
_Contracted out staffing 177 211
9,830 9,623
Restructuring costs — contractual 14 -
_Reslructuring costs = non contractual 14 .
Total staff costs 9 858 9,623

Included within social security costs is £21,602 (2022: £19,036) in respect of the Apprentice Levy.
Restructuring costs for 2023 comprise redundancy cosis paid to one employee.

Key management personnel

Key management personnel are those persons having authority and responsibility for planning,
directing and conirolling the activities of the college and are represented by the college leadership
team which comprises the College Senior Leadership Team (as per page 2). At 31 July 2023, the
College Senior Leadership Team comprised the Principal, two Assistant Principals and one
Director.

Emoluments of key management personnel, Accounting Officer and other higher paid staff

At At

31 July 2023 31 July 2022
_ No. No.

The number of kay management personnel 4 7

including the Accounting Officer was:

Three management posts were vacant as at 31 July 2023

55



KEMDAL COLLEGE

Annual Report and Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 July 2023

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

The number of key management personnel who received annual emoluments, excluding
amployer confributions to nalional insurance, pensions and redundancy costs but including

benefits in kind, in the following ranges was:

Key management personnel

Year ended Year ended

31 July 202 31 July 2022

£'000 £'000

£0 to £45,000 p.a. 1 -

£45,001 to £50,000 p.a. - -

£50,001 to £55,000 p.a. 1 2

£55,001 to £60,000 p.a. 1 1

£60,001 to £65,000 p.a. 1 2

£65,001 to £70,000 p.a. 2 1

£70,001 to £75,000 p.a. - -
£100,001 io £150,000 p.a. 1 1

T [

Mo other staff received emoluments in excess of £60,000 p.a.

Kay management personnel compensation is made up as follows:

Year ended Year ended

31 July 2023 31 July 2022

£'000 £'000

Basic salary (gross of salary sacrifice) 464 460

Performance related pay and bonus . -

Benefits in kind 2 2
Restructuring costs — redundancy paymaent 14

Employer MNational Insurance 58 56

Pension contributions o6 102

Total key management personnel compensation 634 620

There iz a healthcare scheme in place for the Principal only, this is accounted for as a benefit in

kind.

The above compensation includes amounts paid to the Principal and Chief Executive who is the
Accounting Officer and the highest pad member of staff. Their pay and remuneration is as follows:

Year ended Year ended

31 July 2023 31 July 2022

£'000 £'000

Basic salary 113 109
Performance related pay and bonus - 5
Benefits in kind 2 2
Employer National Insurance 15 14
Pension contributions 27 26
Total key management personnel compensation 157 151
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The Board of Governors has adopled AoC's Senior Staff Remuneration Code and assesses pay
in line with its principles. The remuneration for key management personnel, including the
Accounting Officer, was determined at the Remuneration Committee in their meeting of 4 August
2022; board minute 143 recorded that a 3% pay increase be applied from 1 August 2022 with a
further 2% increase applied from 1 March 2023. Factors taken inlo account in agreeing the
Accounting Officer's remuneration included achievement of performance targets and reference
to the Aol pay recommendation, to ensure the salary was in line with sector norms, and taking
account of the AoC Remuneration Code for senior staff adopted by the Corporation. The
Accounting Officer was not invelved in the selting of his own remuneration.

Other key management personnel received the same pay award as the rest of the College staff.

The relationship between the Accounting Officer's emoluments, expressed as a multiple of all
other employees based on full time equivalents, is set out balow for bath basic salary and total
remunaration,

Year ended

Year ended 31 July 2022

31 July 2023 (restated)

Basic salary as a multiple of median basic salary of staff 3.52 3.47
Total remuneration as a multiple of median total 3.74 3.68

remuneration of staff

For the purposes of this calculation, the costs associated with all staff directly employed by the
Collage, including those on variable hours contracts, have been included. Prior year figures
excluded costs relaling to casual staff and have, therefore, been restated. Costs associated with
agency staff and exceptional redundancy costs have been excluded.

Compensation for loss of office paid to former key management personnel

Year ended Year ended
31 July 2023 31 July 2022
£'000 £'000
Compensation paid o one former post holder
- contraciual 14 =
- non contractual 14 -
Total 28

The severance payment was approved by the College's Board of Governors.
Governors' remuneration

The Accounting Officer and the staff members only receive remuneration in respect of services
they provide undertaking their roles of Principal and staff member under contracts of employment
and not in respact of their roles as Governors.

The other members of the Corporation did not receive any payments from the College in respect
of their roles as Governors,

During the years to 31 July 2023 and 31 July 2022 no Governors were paid travel and subsistence
or out of pocket expenses incurrad in the course of their duties.
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7. Other Operating Expenses

Year ended Year ended
31 July 2023 31 July 2022
£'000 E'000
Teaching costs 1,616 1,303
MNon-teaching cosls 1,615 1,413
Pramises cosis 881 636
Total 4,112 3,352
Deficit / surplus is stated afler charging (crediting):

Year ended Year ended
31 July 2023 31 July 2022
_ £°000 £'000

Auditors’ remuneration:
Financial statemenis audit 39 30
Teachers’ Pension audit 3 1
Internal audit 21 15
Loss on disposal of fixed assets 3 2
Hire of assets under operating leases 75 60

8. Write offs, losses, guarantees, letters of comfort, compensation

The College has operated within the delegated limits of the ESFA, as outlined in the Dear
Accounting Officer letter of 29 November 2023. The College has not incurred any losses [ write-
offs which exceed £45k individually or £250k cumulatively; the College has not entered into any
indemnities, guarantees or letters of comfort in excess of £45k individually or E250k cumulatively;

and the College has not awarded any compensation payments in excess of E50k.

9. Interest and other finance costs

Year ended Year ended
31 July 2023 31 July 2022
- £'000 £'000
On bank loans and overdrafts 109 104
Met interest on defined pension liability (note 23) 69 118
FRS102 administrative costs 21 18
Total 199 240
10. Taxation

The Board of Governors do not balieve that the College is liable for Corporation Tax arising out

of its activities during the year.
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12. Intangible Fixed Assets

Software
£'000
Cost
At 1 August 2022 94
Additions 2
Disposals (9}
At 31 July 2023 87
Amortisation
At 1 August 2022 (51)
Charge for the year (17}
_Elimination in respect of disposals g
At 31 July 2023 (59)
Carried forward as at 31 July 2023 28
Carried forward as at 31 July 2022 43
13. Trade and other receivables
Year ended Year ended
31 July 2023 31 July 2022
£'000 £000
Amounts falling due within one year:
Trade receivables 386 287
Prepayments and accrued income 161 102
Amounts owed by the ESFA 462 193
Dther deblors 35 23
Total 1,044 605

14. Current investments

The College did not hold any deposits with more than three months maturity at either 31 July 2023
or 31 July 2022.
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15. Creditors: amounts falling due within one year

Year ended Year ended
31 July 2023 31 July 2022
£'000 £'000
Bank loans and overdrafts 163 156
FPaymenis received in advance 1,495 1.014
Trade payables 208 751
Learning Support Fund (LSF) creditor 196 145
Other taxation and social security 168 156
Accruals and deferrad income 724 ava
Deferred income — government capital grants 548 438
Total 3,502 3,534
16. Creditors: amounts falling due after one year
Year ended Year ended
31 July 2023 31 July 2022
- £000 £'000
Bank loans and overdrafis 1.774 1,937
Payments received in advance 1,165 -
Deferred income — government capital grants 13,809 13,037
Total 16,748 14,974
17. Maturity of debt
The bank loans held at 31 July 2023 were both “unsecurad”.
a. Bank loans and overdrafts
Bank loans and overdrafls are repayable as follows:
Year ended Year ended
31 July 2023 31 July 2022
£'000 £'000
In cne year oF lass 163 156
Between one and two years 170 163
Between two and five years 560 535
In five years or more 1,044 1,239
Total 1,937 2,093

The Lloyds loan has a term of 22 years, paid by instalmenis until October 2032 al an interest rate of
5.54% and annual repaymenis total £213k (comprising both interast and capital repayments). The
MatWest bank loan has a term of 22 years paid by instalment until March 2036, at an interest rate
of base rate plus 1.45% as well as annual repayments of £31k.
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18. Provisions

Defined Benefit Enhanced Total
Obligations Pensions

£'000
...... £'000 £'000
At 1 August 2022 (2,207) {344) (2,551)
Utilised in the year 287 a2 319
Additional provision in the year 3,609 11 3.620
Assel capping (1,689) - (1,689)
At 31 July 2023 - (301) {(301)

Defined benefil cbligations relate to the liabilities under the college’s membership of the Local
Government Pension Scheme. Further details are given in note 23.

The enhanced pension provision relates to the cost of staff who have already left the College’s
employ. This provision has been recalculated in accordance with the guidance issued by funding
bodies.

The principal assumptlions for this calculation are:

Year ended Year ended
31 July 2023 31 July 2022
Price inflaticn 5.0% 3.3%
Discount rate 2.8% 2.9%
19. Cash and cash equivalents
At 31 August Dther At 31 July
2022 Cash flows changes 2023
- £°'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
Cash and cash aquivalants 2,274 526 - 2,800
Total 2,879 526 - 2,800
20. Capital and other commitments
Year ended Year ended
31 July 2023 31 July 2022
£°000 £'000

TS

Commitments contracted for al 31 July 247 747
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21. Lease obligations

At 31 July the college had minimum lease paymenis under non-cancellable operating leases as

follows:
Year ended Year ended
31 July 2023 31 July 2022
£'000 £'000

Other
Mot later than one year 45 54
Later than one year and not later than five years 145 138
Later than five years 74 91
Total lease payments due 264 283

22. Contingencies

The College is not aware of any contingent liabilities.

23. Defined benefit obligations

The College's employees belong to two principal post-employment benefit plans: the Teachers’
Pension Scheme England and Wales (TPS) for academic and related staff; and the Cumbria Local
Government Pension Scheme (LGPS) for non-teaching staff. Both are multi-employer defined-
benefit plans.

The pension costs are assessed in accordance with the advice of independent qualified actuaries.
The latest formal actuarial valuation of the TPS during the period was as at 31 March 2016 and of
the LGPS 31 March 2019. A revised valuation of the TPS as at 31 March 2020 was published in
MNovember 2023.

Year Year
ended ended
31 July 31 July
2023 2022
o . £'000 £'000
Teachers' Pension Scheme: contributions 1,037 9949
Local Government Pension Scheme
Contributions paid 489 455
__FRS102 (28) charge 176 562
Charge to the Statement of Comprehensive Income 1,702 1,017
Enhanced pension charge to the Statement of (11) (31)
Comprehensive Income
Total pension cost for the year within staff costs 1,691 1,985
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Teachers' Pension Scheme

The Teachers' Pension Scheme (TPS) is a statulory, contributory, defined benefit scheme,
governed by the Teachers' Pension Scheme Regulations 2014. These regulations apply lo
teachers in schools, colleges and other educational establishments. Membership is automatic for
teachers and lecturers at eligible institutions. Teachers and lecturers are able to opt out of the TPS,

The TPS is an unfunded scheme and members confribute on a ‘pay as you go' basis — these
contributions, along with those made by employers, are credited to the Exchequer under
arrangemenis governed by the above Act. Retirement and other pension benefits are paid by public
funds provided by Parliament.

Under the definitions set out in FRS 102 (28.11), the TPS is a multi-employer pension plan. The
college is unable to identify its share of the underlying assets and liabilities of the plan.

Accordingly, the College has taken advantage of the exemption in FRS 102 and has accounted for
its contributions to the scheme as if it were a defined-contribution plan. The College has sel out
above the information available on the plan and the implications for the College in terms of the
anficipated contribution rates.

Valuation of the Teachers' Pension Scheme

The valuation of the TPS is carried out in line with regulations made under the Public Service
Pension Act 2013. Valuations credit the teachers’ pension account with a real rate of return
assuming funds are invested in notional investments that produce that real rate of return.

The latest actuarial review of the TPS was camied out as at 31 March 2020. The valuation report
was published by the Department for Education (the Department) in November 2023. The valuation
reported total scheme liabilities (pensions currently in payment and the estimated cost of future
benefits) for service to the effective date of £262 billion (2016: £218 billion), and notional assets
(estimated future contributions together with the notional investments held at the valuation date] of
£222 billion (2016: £196 billion) giving a notional past service deficit of £40 billion (2022: £22 billion).

As a result of the valuation, new employer contribution rates have been set at 28.68% of
pensionable pay from April 2024 onwards (compared to 23.68% during 2022/23).

The DFE pays a teacher pension employer contribution grant to cover the additional pension cosls
which arose following the 2016 valuation and Teachers Pensions Grants of £340,145 were
recaived during the year to 31 July 2023. Additional funding to cover the further increase in cosls
from April 2024 has been announced for the 2024/25 financial year only.

A full copy of the valuation report and supporting documentation can be found on the Teachers’
Pension Scheme website.

The pension costs paid to TPS in the year amounted to £1,037,102 (2020: £998,874) and £117K
is included within the year-end creditors balance in relation to outstanding contributions to the TPS
scheme (2022: £116k).
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Local Government Pension Scheme (LGPS)

The LGPS is a funded defined-benefit plan, with the assets held in separate funds administered by
Your Pension Service on behalf of Cumbria County Council. The total contributions made for the
year ended 31 July 2023 were £637,910, of which employer’'s contributions totalled £487,343 and
amployees’ contributions totalled £150,567. The employer's contribution figure includes £30,200
for deficit recovery. £53k is included within the year-end creditors balance in relation to outstanding
contributions to the LGPS scheme (2022: £46k).

The agreed contribution rales for fulure years are 18.6% for the college and range from 5.5% to
12.5% for employees, depending on salary according to a national scale.

Principal actuarial assumptions

The following information is based upon a full actuarial valuation of the fund at 31 March 2019
updated lo 31 July 2023 by a qualified, independent acluary.

At 31 July 2023 At 31 July 2022

E'000 £'000
Rates of increase in salaries 4.2% 4,29%
Future pension increases 2.8% 2.8%
Discount rate for scheme liabilities 5.1% 3.5%
Inflation assumption {CP1) 2.7% 2.7%

The current mortality assumptions include sufficient allowance for future improvements in mortality
rates. The assumed life expectations on retirement age 65 are:

- At 31 July 2023 At 31 July 2022
Retiring today
Malas 21.4 226
Females 23.8 25.3
Retiring in 20 years
Males 227 24.1
Females 256 271

The college’s share of the assets in the plan at the balance sheet date and the expected rates of
refurn were:

Fair value at 31 Fair valua at 31

July 2023 July 2022
£'000 E'000
Equity instruments 6,198 5,132
Government bonds 2,061 2,168
Property 1,256 1,481
Cash 370 473
Oiher bonds 5 -
Other B 6,215 6,016
Total fair value of plan assets 16,100 15,270

Actual return on plan assets 215 (319)
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The amount included in the balance sheet in respect of the defined benefit pension plan and
enhanced pensions benefils is as follows:

At 31 July 2023 At 31 July 2022

- £'000 E'000
Fair value of plan assets 16,100 15.270
Present value of plan liabilities {14,394) {17,458)
Present value of unfunded liabilites (17) (19}
Asset valuation ceiling cap (1,689) 0
Met pensions assel - (2,207)

The LGPS was last valued as at 31 March 2022; this valuation informed the employer contribution
rates applied from 1 April 2023 to 31 March 2025. The current contribution rate of 18.6% will not
be adjusted for the movement in the fair value of the plan. As no economic benefit will be derived
from the change in the fair value of the plan over the period, the value of Ihe asset has been capped.

Amounts recognised in the Statement of Comprehensive Income

Amounts included in staff costs

Year ended Year ended
31 July 2023 31 July 2022
£'000 £'000
Current service cost 667 1.021
Past zervice cost - -
Total 667 1,021
Amounts included in interest and other finance costs
Year ended Year ended
31 July 2023 31 July 2022
- £'000 £'000
Interest cosls 69 118
Administrative costs 21 18
Total a0 136
Amounts recognised in Other Comprehensive Income
Year ended Year ended
31 July 2023 3 July 2022
S E'ﬂm E.n“ﬂ
Remeasurement of plan assels 46 566
Experience losses arising on defined benefit 1,683 1,414
obligations
Changes in assumptions underlying present value of (5,890) (8,046)
plan liabilities
Asset valuation ceiling cap 1,689 0
Amount recognised in Other Comprehensive (2,472) {6,066)

Income
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Movement in net defined benefit (liability) / asset during the year

Year ended Year ended
31 July 2023 31 July 2022
— £'000 E'000
Net defined benefit (liability) / asset at 1 August (2,207) (7.575)
Movement in yaar:
Current service cost (667) {1,021}
Employer contributions 491 459
Past service cost - =
Net interast (69) {118)
Actuarial gain or loss 4,207 6,632
Asset valuation ceiling cap {1.688) -
Remeasurement of plan assels (46) {566)
Admin expenses (20) {18)
Net defined benefit (liability) / asset at 31 July - (2,207)
Changes in the present value of defined benefit cbligations
Year ended Year ended
31 July 2023 31 July 2022
. £'000 £'000
Defined benefit obligations at 1 August 17,477 22,812
Current service cost 667 1,021
Interest cost 810 365
Contributions by scheme participants 151 134
Experience gains and losses on defined benefit abligalions 1,683 1,414
Changes in financial assumptions {5,890) (8,048)
Estimated benefils paid (287) _(223)
Defined benefit obligations at 31 July 14,411 17,477
Changes in fair value of plan assets
Year ended Year ended
31 July 2023 31 July 2022
_ _E'000 £'000
Fair value of plan assets al 1 August 15,270 15,237
Interest on plan assels 541 247
Administralion expanses (20) (18}
Remeasurement of assels (46) (966)
Employer contributions 491 459
Contributions by scheme participants 151 134
_Estimated benefits paid (287) {223)
Fair value of plan assets at 31 July 16,100 15,270

UK law requires pension scheme to provide equal benefils to men and women in respact of service
after 17 May 1990, the date of the “Barber” judgement. This includes providing equal benefits
accrued from that date lo reflect the differences in Guaranteed Minimum Pensions ("GMPs"). HM
Treasury have stated since the judgement that “public sector scheme already have a method to
equalise guaranteed minimum pension benefits, which is why we will not have to change our mathod
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as a result of this judgement” which implies that the Government believe that the judgement will not
affect the benefits. Therefore, it is not considered appropriate for any provision to be included for the
effect of this judgement at this present ime. Mo allowance has been made for GMP egualisation in
the accounting liabilities, which is consistenl with previous accounting disclosures {and the most
recent valuation). However, government consultations in relation to this area remain ongoing and,
in due course, there may be a further cost to the LGPS and its employers in conneclion with
equalisation / indexation.

The actuary has included allowances for the implications the Sargeant/McCloud case.

There has been subsiantial volatility in financial markets and bonds in recent periods, this has
consequences for asset values and liabilities. The actuarial valuation performed for the purposes of
the statutory accounts identified an accounting surplus for the College at 31 July 2023. However, as
no economic benefit will be received from this asset, it has not been recognised. The value of the
LGPS defined beneafit scheme relating to the College at 31 July 2023 has been capped at £nil.

24. Related party transactions

Due to the nature of the College's operations and the composition of the Board of Governors baing
drawn from local public and private sector organisations, il is possible that transactions will take
place with organisations in which a member of the Board of Governors may have an interest. All
transactions involving such organisations are conducted at arm's length and in accordance with
the College’s financial regulations and normal procurement procedures.

Govarnors' expenses claimed from the College in the year weare nil (2022 nil).

Mo governor has received any remuneration or waived payments from the College during the year
(2022: none).

There wera no other related party transactions during the period.

25. Amounts disbursed as agent - Learner support funds

Year ended Year ended

31 July 2023 31 July 2022

- £'000 £'000

Balance brought forward 145 148
Accounting adjustments for prior years 64

16-18 bursary grants 216 206

Other funding body grants 40 45

Interest earned = -

401 399

Disbursed to students {232) (182)

Administration costs (10) (2}

Retained funds and clawbacks (27) {(63)

Balance unspent as at 31 July, included in creditors 196 145
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An adjustment has been made during the period to amend the accounting treatment adaopted in
relation to Free School Meals and 19+ Bursary Income, which was previously held within the
College accounts but is now treated as funds disbursed by the College as an agent.

Funding body grants are available solely for students. In the majority of instances, the Collage only
acls as a paying agent. In these circumstances, the grants and related disbursements are therefore
excluded from the Statement of Comprahansive Income.,

26. Events after the reporting period

As part of a refinancing arrangement approved by the ESFA, the existing £1.9 million Lioyds loan is
dug to be repaid in December 2023 when the College will enter into a new, additional loan with
Natwest for £4.6 million. This new loan, which is secured by a first legal charge on the Milnthorpe
Road campus, is for a term of 25 years at an interest rate of bank base rate plus 2.13% and subject
to covenants on EBITDA.

On 20 November 2023, the College was informed that a joint application with Westmorland &
Fumess Council for Levelling Up funding has received approval. As a result of this, the College
anticipates receiving up to £1.6 million of additional funding to support the redevelopment of the
Wastmorand Campus.



